
 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 
 

February 19, 2018 
7:30 P.M. 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

Greg Trzupek, Chairman Mike Stratis Luisa Hoch 
 Dehn Grunsten Greg Scott 
 Jim Broline Mary Praxmarer 
   

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 

A. February 5, 2018 Plan Commission Regular Meeting 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Z-03-2018:   Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Outdoor, Overnight Commercial Vehicle 
Parking in Manufacturing Districts 

 
 Requests consideration of an amendment to Section X.B.7 of the Zoning Ordinance, which states 

that no more than two delivery trucks weighing less than 24,000 pounds are permitted to be parked 
outdoors, overnight in a Manufacturing District, except by approval of a special use; said 
amendment to consider allowing different quantities and types of outdoor, overnight commercial 
vehicle parking in Manufacturing Districts. 

IV. CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Board Report – February 12, 2018 

B. Building Report – January 2018 

C. 2018 Zoning Map 

 

V. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

A. PC-04-2018: 7656 Wolf Road (Venclovas); Private Sanitary Sewer System for New Home 
 

B. S-02-2018: Conditional Sign Approval - 7600 County Line Road (Shirley Ryan Ability 
Lab); Conditional Approval and Findings of Fact 
 

C. PC-05-2018: Consideration of Amendments to the Sign Ordinance 
 

D. PC-06-2018: Annual Zoning Ordinance Review 



 February 19, 2018 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 2 of 2 
 

VI. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 

A. March 5, 2018: The filing deadline for this meeting was February 5, 2018. 

 Z-04-2018: 16W301 91st Street (McDonalds’s): Requests an amendment to a PUD and 
requests a special use approval for a restaurant with drive-thru facilities in a B-2 Business 
District.  

 Z-05-2018: 7950 Drew Avenue (Patera): Requests a variation to permit a PUD in a R-3 
Residential District that is less than 40 acres in area.   

 Z-06-2018: Requests a text amendment and special use to or variation pursuant to 
Section IV of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit an electric fence in a non-
residential district.  

B. March 19, 2018: The filing deadline for this meeting was February 19, 2018. 

 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  All Plan Commission recommendations are advisory and are submitted to the Mayor and Board 
of Trustees for review and final action.  Any item being voted on at this Plan Commission meeting will be forwarded 
to the Mayor and Board of Trustees for consideration at their February 26, 2018 Regular Meeting beginning at 7:00 
P.M.  Commissioner Praxmarer is the Plan Commission representative for the February 26, 2018 Board meeting. 



PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF  
FEBRUARY 5, 2018 

 
I.  ROLL CALL 
The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 
7:30 p.m. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois by 
Chairman Trzupek.  
ROLL CALL was noted as follows:   
PRESENT: 5 – Stratis, Grunsten, Broline, Scott, and Trzupek 
ABSENT: 2 – Hoch, Praxmarer 
Staff present were Village Administrator Doug Pollock and Assistant to the Village Administrator 
Evan Walter.  

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Broline and SECONDED by Commissioner Grunsten 
to approve the minutes of the January 15, 2018 Plan Commission meeting.  
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  3 – Broline, Grunsten, Stratis 
NAYS: 0 – None 
ABSTAIN: 1 – Scott, Trzupek 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0. 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Chairman Trzupek swore in all those wishing to speak during the public hearings on the agenda 
for tonight’s meeting.  

Z-02-2018: 15W308 North Frontage Road (Wilk): Text Amendment, Special Use, and 
Findings of Fact 
As directed by Chairman Trzupek, Mr. Walter described this request as follows: the petitioner is 
Michael Wilk, owner of Magic Irrigation, a landscape irrigation systems installer seeking to 
relocate to Burr Ridge. The primary services offered by the business include the installation of 
sprinkler systems and landscape lighting. The petitioner is requesting a text amendment to the 
Zoning Ordinance to designate “irrigation installation business” as a special use in the B-2 
Business District, a special use approval as per the amendment to operate an irrigation installation 
business upon approval of the text amendment, as well as a special use to permit outdoor overnight 
parking for six vans and three trailers in a B-2 Business District, all at 15W308 North Frontage 
Road. At this time, there is no permitted or special use that can accommodate the petitioner in a 
B-2 Business District. The petitioner does not intend to attract customers to the property; rather, 
the property is intended to house the administrative functions of their business, such as sales and 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

Page 2 of 7 

scheduling, as well as to park and store company-owned vans and trailers outdoors and overnight. 
In their pre-application meeting with staff, the petitioner stated that their future plans include 
purchasing and redeveloping the entire block into a multi-tenant use, such as an office building.    
Michael Wilk, owner of Magic Irrigation, said that he was interested in relocating his business to 
Burr Ridge and explained the nature of his business.  
Chairman Trzupek at this time asked for public comment.  
Mark Thoma, 7515 Drew, asked if any outside storage would occur on-site. Mr. Wilk said that no 
outside storage would occur except for vehicles.  
Commissioner Stratis asked if any heavy equipment or gas will be stored or maintained on the 
property. Mr. Wilk said that the business does own one digger, but that it would be stored indoors 
and not be mechanically maintained on the property, and no gas would be stored on the property. 
Commissioner Stratis asked if the business was a point-of-sale for parts. Mr. Wilk said that he 
purchased them from a wholesaler and was not a point-of-sale in Burr Ridge.  
Commissioner Broline asked when trucks would leave and return to the business as well as if the 
trucks were full. Mr. Wilk said that the trucks generally leave around 7:00 a.m. and return around 
5:00 p.m. and generally be loaded near the building. Commissioner Broline asked if additional 
lighting was necessary. Mr. Wilk said that they did not need additional lighting, and that they were 
a seasonal business and do not operate in the winter.  
Commissioner Scott asked what type and quantity of vehicles would be stored outside. Mr. Wilk 
said that six vans and three trailers would be stored outside. Commissioner Scott asked about the 
status of the parking lot. Mr. Wilk said that he has a three-year lease with an option to purchase 
the property at the end of the lease, and preferred not to invest in the parking lot until he purchased 
the property. Commissioner Scott asked about interim property improvements. Mr. Wilk said that 
they planned to freshen up the interior of the building, as well as install landscaping on the 
property.  
Chairman Trzupek asked about retail sales. Mr. Wilk said that the customer would purchase the 
entire system from his company, and pass through the costs to the customer that were paid for 
originally. Chairman Trzupek asked about the sales process. Mr. Wilk described his sales and 
installation process.  
At 7:50 p.m. a MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Stratis to close the public hearing.  
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  5 –Scott, Stratis, Grunsten, Broline, Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None  
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by Commissioner Grunsten to 
recommend that the Board of Trustees approve an amendment to Section VIII.C.2 of the Zoning 
Ordinance to add Irrigation installation business, with no customers on premises as a special use 
in the B-2 Business District.  



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

Page 3 of 7 

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  5 – Scott, Grunsten, Stratis, Broline, Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Hoch to 
adopt the petitioner’s findings of fact and recommend that the Board of Trustees approve a special 
use for an Irrigation installation business, with no customers on premises to Magic Irrigation 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. The special use will be limited to Magic Irrigation in a manner consistent with the 
submitted business plan and shall expire if Magic Irrigation no longer operates the 
business at 15W308 North Frontage Road. 

2. The special use and facility shall be limited to the building on the property at 15W308 
North Frontage Road in which Magic Irrigation will be the sole occupant. 

3. No other business activities other than administrative functions and storage of equipment 
related to an irrigation installation business use shall be conducted within the building on 
the property at 15W308 North Frontage Road in which Magic Irrigation is the sole 
occupant. 

4. The special use shall expire if the property is significantly re-developed from its current 
state, including but not limited to demolition of the current building at 15W308 North 
Frontage Road. 

5. The special use shall be granted on a temporary basis for a term of three years, at which 
time the property owner must demonstrate that the property is in the process of 
redevelopment or must bring the non-conforming parking lot into conformance with the 
standards set forth by the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance.  

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  5 – Stratis, Scott, Grunsten, Broline, Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Scott to 
adopt the petitioner’s findings of fact and recommend that the Board of Trustees approve a special 
use for outdoor, overnight parking and storage of commercial vans and trailers in a B-2 Business 
District for Magic Irrigation, subject to the following conditions: 

1. All outdoor, overnight parking of commercial vans and trailers shall be limited to the north 
parking lot within the fenced-in area. 

2. Outdoor, overnight parking shall be limited to six commercial vans and three trailers each 
with a gross weight not exceeding 24,000 pounds. 

3. Only commercial vans or trailers owned and operated by Magic Irrigation shall be parked 
on the premises overnight.  

4. The special use shall expire if the property is significantly re-developed from its current 
state, including but not limited to demolition of the current building at 15W308 North 
Frontage Road. 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

Page 4 of 7 

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  5 – Stratis, Scott, Grunsten, Broline, Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 

V. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
S-01-2018: 16W260 83rd Street (Odeh): Variation and Findings of Fact 
As directed by Chairman Trzupek, Mr. Walter described this request as follows: the petitioner is 
Awad Odeh, owner of Apex Motorworks, an indoor automobile sales business located at 16W260 
83rd Street. The petitioner is requesting a variation from the Burr Ridge Sign Ordinance to permit 
two wall signs in addition to a permitted ground sign on the premises. The petitioner requests the 
variance for wall signs in addition to a permitted ground sign because the business is restricted 
from storing or selling any inventory outdoors as a condition of their special use, and signs are 
their only on-premise method of attracting customers to their location. At the petitioner’s public 
hearing for a special use in May 2017, the subject of attracting customers was brought up by several 
Commissioners. The petitioner stated that they anticipated a very small minority of their business 
would be from drive-by customers; instead, they planned to attract a significant portion of their 
customer base via online marketing methods. 
Commissioner Scott asked why the signs were already erected in place if they were not approved. 
Mr. Walter explained that the petitioner was under the impression that the signs were approved as 
part of a building permit which showed the sign elevations on the exterior. He said that staff has 
taken steps to make it clearer that signs should be reviewed separately.  
Awad Odeh, 16W260 83rd Street, said that while drive-by customers are not their core customer, 
they sought the variance to ensure that the building’s visibility was clear regardless of where 
customers were coming from.  
Commissioner Scott asked if the Plan Commission had ever been petitioned to have a wall sign in 
addition to a ground sign. Mr. Walter said that the Plan Commission had recommended approval 
of variances similar to the one before them. 
Commissioner Grunsten asked if any comments were made about the petitioner. Mr. Walter said 
that no public notice was given because none is required for a sign variance. Commissioner 
Grunsten asked if granting the variance would set a precedent for this particular street. Mr. Walter 
said that he could not recall one being granted on that particular street, but variances could always 
set precedent. 
Commissioner Broline asked how the petition came to light. Mr. Walter said that a complaint was 
received about the parking lot lighting, which prompted the discovery of a lack of permit or 
variation. Mr. Pollock said that a complaint was separately received about the signs. Mr. Broline 
said that he felt that there was disregard for the neighborhood in the way the signs were put up. 
Mr. Odeh said that disregard was not intended and said that his business was appreciative of the 
special use that had been granted to his business. Mr. Broline asked how the lighting was resolved. 
Mr. Odeh said that the lights were turned back towards the parking lot as well as removed some 
lightbulbs to dim the effects. 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

Page 5 of 7 

Commissioner Stratis said that he needed to examine this request as if the signs were not already 
in place, and would not have supported the request had it been made before they were installed.  
Chairman Trzupek asked what the maximum amount of permitted signage would be. Mr. Walter 
said that the building is permitted 100 square feet of signage but that they were limited to one sign 
per the Sign Ordinance. Chairman Trzupek said he was sympathetic to the petition if all of the 
signs were under 100 square feet. Mr. Odeh said they would be willing to take down the smaller 
of the wall signs if it made their petition more attractive. Chairman Trzupek said that a precedent 
would be set regardless of whether it was one or two signs that would be permitted. 
Mr. Walter said that the Economic Development Commission was currently considering 
recommending amendments to the Sign Ordinance and that it may make sense to table the petition 
until the EDC can present their recommendations to the Board, which may result in favorable 
amendments to the petitioner. Mr. Pollock recommended that the Plan Commission deny the 
variation, and the Board of Trustees have the opportunity to table the matter.  
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner Praxmarer 
to recommend that the Board of Trustees deny the request for a variation from Section 55.07 of 
the Burr Ridge Sign Ordinance to permit two wall signs in addition to a permitted ground sign. 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  5 – Scott, Stratis, Grunsten, Broline, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 

Lakeside Pointe PUD Final Engineering and Plat Review 
As directed by Chairman Trzupek, Mr. Pollock described this request as follows: the petitioner, 
McNaughton Development, Inc., developer of the Lakeside Pointe subdivision, submitted the final 
plat and final engineering plans for staff review on November 30, 2017.  The first set of review 
comments were provided to the developer on December 18, 2017.  Revised plans were provided 
by the developer on January 15, 2018 and a second set of review comments were provided to the 
developer on January 30, 2018.  Each set of staff review comments includes a review by the 
Community Development Department relative to compliance with the preliminary PUD, Zoning 
and Subdivision Ordinances; review comments from the Village Engineer, and review comments 
from the Village’s consulting forester.   

1. Review comments provided in the attached staff review dated January 30, 2018 and not 
also covered in this review will be addressed prior to recording of the final plat subject to 
staff review. 

2. The developer and the Plan Commission should consider if land banking of the 
perpendicular parking spaces would be appropriate.  These spaces have limited value as 
for every 2 perpendicular spaces added, there is 1 parallel space on the street removed.  If 
land banked, the developer could be asked to provide an escrow account that would be 
used if the Homeowners Association decided the extra parking is needed. 

3. The proposed donation of park land is under consideration by the Pleasant Dale Park 
District Board.  However, the developer requests that if the Park Board does not accept 
the land donation, that the Village accept the proposed park to be improved by the 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

Page 6 of 7 

developer, maintained by the Homeowners Association, and provided with an easement 
that grants public access to the park.  As per Section X.A.4 of the Burr Ridge Subdivision 
Ordinance, the Village has the option of accepting a “private” park dedicated for public 
use in lieu of a park impact fee or land donation.  If the Park District prefers not to accept 
a land donation and the Village agrees to accept a “private” park, it is suggested that the 
developer provide an initial deposit of funds to be used by the HOA for park maintenance. 

4. An improvement plan for the park has been provided which includes diagonal parking 
spaces located in the public right of way.  Staff cannot recommend this design for parking.  
As an alternative, it may work to construct parallel parking spaces in this same location.  
Under any circumstances, it is requested that any work in the right of way be accompanied 
by the removal of the landscaping island in the middle of Bridewell Road.  

5. The Subdivision Ordinance requires a half street improvement of the adjacent 
Commonwealth Avenue. It appears the intent was to waive or reduce this requirement.  It 
is staff’s recommendation to waive the street improvements except to add a turnaround at 
the end of the street.   

6. Similarly, there was no specific action in the preliminary PUD approval to waive the 
requirement for a donation in lieu of the required sidewalks.  Required sidewalks that are 
not being constructed include a sidewalk along Commonwealth Avenue and along the 
outside loop of the internal street.  A fee in lieu of the required sidewalks will be required 
unless specifically waived by the Board of Trustees.  The Village’s Pathway Commission 
is recommending a donation in lieu of the required sidewalks not being built. 

7. Final review of the building elevations is required by the Plan Commission and Village 
Board.  Attached are building elevations showing 8 different elevations.  The materials 
and design are similar to the elevations approved with the preliminary PUD plans.  The 
Plan Commission should recommend anti-monotony regulations for the final PUD 
approval.  Typical regulations would include prohibiting the same elevation on adjacent 
lots and limiting the number of units using the same elevation throughout the subdivision. 

 
John Barry, McNaughton Development, said that his company made the proposal to the Park 
District, who has currently not determined a course of action, which led them to make the proposal 
to the Village directly. His company would complete all improvements and be HOA-owned after 
a period of time. Mr. Barry said that perpendicular parking was proposed because storm sewer was 
present in the area and it would be less impactful to have parking in this manner. Mr. Barry said 
that they were under the impression that the residents on Commonwealth Avenue wished to have 
their street remain as-is during the development of the parcel. Mr. Barry said that they felt that 
they should also not be subject to the sidewalk requirements as the Plan Commission only required 
the petitioner to have sidewalks on the inside loop of the street. 
 
Commissioner Stratis said he did not want to see perpendicular parking near the park, which staff 
agreed with. Mr. Pollock said that parallel parking would be preferred to perpendicular, and that it 
would become part of the public right-of-way. Commissioner Stratis asked if key lots were 
identified to have four-sided masonry. Mr. Barry said that eleven key lots were identified to have 
standard four-sided masonry, while all homes will have the option to have such construction. 
Commissioner Grunsten asked about park access. Mr. Barry outlined how residents will be able to 
reach the proposed park via sidewalks. 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

Page 7 of 7 

Commissioner Scott asked about existing green space and vegetation. Mr. Barry said that they 
preferred to wait until spring to examine the species and health of trees on the property.  
 
Commissioner Scott asked how long McNaughton intended to manage the property before turning 
it over to the HOA. Mr. Barry said it would be three years before such a transition occurs.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked about key lots. Mr. Barry said that eleven key lots were identified in the 
notes of the plat, while all homes will have the option to have such construction. Mr. Barry said 
that these lots would also have upgraded landscaping plans.  
 
Mark Thoma, 7515 Drew, said that the residents on Commonwealth were most worried about 
losing their green space barrier. Mr. Thoma said that the Village should not pass on the opportunity 
to improve Commonwealth.  
 
Mr. Barry said that the petitioner was agreeable to anti-monotony language that was not included 
in the preliminary plat of approval.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner Scott to 
recommend that the Board of Trustees approve the final plans for the Lakeside Pointe PUD 
subject to addressing outstanding staff comments.  
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
AYES:  5 – Stratis, Scott, Grunsten, Broline, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 

 
VI. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
1.  February 19, 2018 
2.  March 5, 2018 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by Commissioner Stratis to 
ADJOURN the meeting at 9:02 p.m.  ALL MEMBERS VOTING AYE, the meeting was 
adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 

Respectfully 
Submitted:  

  

 Evan Walter, Assistant to the Village Administrator  
 



 
 

 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
       
FROM: Evan Walter, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE: February 9, 2018 
 
RE: Z-03-2018: Outdoor, Overnight Commercial Vehicle Parking 
 
In response to a staff memo at the January 15, 2018 meeting, the Plan Commission requested 
authorization from the Board to conduct a public hearing to consider amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance relative to outdoor, overnight commercial vehicle parking. The Board directed the Plan 
Commission to proceed with the public hearing. For purposes of clarity, staff analysis of the 
consideration shall be limited to Manufacturing Districts, which contains the L-I Light Industrial, 
G-I General Industrial, and R-A Research Assembly Districts. Currently, there are four primary 
Manufacturing Districts in Burr Ridge: Hinsdale Industrial Park (Frontage/83rd/Madison/Shore), 
Burr Ridge Industrial Park (Frontage/79th/Grant), High Grove (Madison/Plainfield), and Tower 
Drive, along with the CNH Industrial property. 
 
Section X.B.7.d (Manufacturing Districts) of the Zoning Ordinance states the following:  
 

d. Overnight parking of trucks outside of an enclosed building shall be prohibited except as 
follows: 

1. A maximum of two delivery trucks may be parked overnight on a lot or parcel.  
2. Delivery trucks allowed as per this subsection shall not exceed 24,000 pounds. 
3. Said delivery trucks shall be parked behind the principal building unless the 

existing configuration of the property precludes parking of trucks in the rear yard 
in which case delivery trucks shall be parked in a side yard behind the front wall 
of the principal building. 

 
Currently, businesses must obtain a special use permit to exceed these requirements. Since the 
above regulations were enacted in 1997, the Village has received ten petitions for special uses; all 
ten have been approved, with the number of vehicles approved ranging from four to 40; only one 
request exceeded 15 trucks. It has been a standard practice of the Village to consider amendments 
to the Zoning Ordinance if special uses are routinely approved.  
 
Many regional municipalities prohibit overnight on-street parking in commercial districts; aside 
from the stated exceptions, the Village is unique in that outdoor, overnight parking commercial 
vehicle parking on private property requires a special use. Furthermore, required indoor parking 
in a smaller building limits the amount of permanent space for businesses, while not all buildings 
in Burr Ridge are able to accommodate indoor commercial vehicle parking due to access issues. 
Staff has prepared the following considerations to encourage discussion. 



 
 

Commercial Vehicle Parking Permit 
 

• The Plan Commission could establish a commercial vehicle permit which would be 
managed by staff. This permit would be similar to a sign permit, wherein petitioners are 
required to have staff review and approve plans subject to established regulations, and are 
permitted to petition the Village for variations if desired. If the Plan Commission preferred 
to create such a permit, staff recommends that it be established using an amended 
regulatory method, such as one of the options previously presented. This option would 
allow for continued oversight by the Plan Commission through staff while allowing for the 
opportunity to review special use requests via a public hearing.  
 

Retain Special Use & Amend Measurement Type 
 

• A business may have a larger number of commercial vehicles parked outdoors, overnight. 
For example, the number could be raised from two to five.  

• A business may park two commercial vehicles outdoors, plus one per amount of building 
square footage that they own or rent i.e. one truck per amount of square feet. For example, 
a business renting 15,000 square feet, at one permitted truck per 1,500 square feet, would 
be permitted to park twelve commercial vehicles overnight.  

• A business may park one commercial vehicle outdoors per amount of building square 
footage that they own or rent i.e. one truck per 2,000 square feet. For example, a business 
renting 8,000 square feet would be permitted to park four commercial vehicles overnight. 

• A business may park a truck based on a ratio of their allotted parking spaces for outdoor 
commercial vehicle parking i.e. one truck for every five spaces. For example, a business 
with 30 parking spaces would be permitted to park six commercial vehicles overnight.  

 
Regulate by Vehicle Size 
 

• Auto companies have introduced smaller, more car-like offerings into the commercial 
vehicle market, such as the Ford Transit. PermaSeal, who received a special use to store 40 
commercial vehicles outdoors, operates an all-Ford Transit fleet. These vehicles are much 
smaller and easier to park than large box trucks, and could be treated differently than larger 
commercial vehicles. For example, commercial vehicles up to 10,000 pounds would be 
exempt, three trucks between 10,001-24,000 pounds would be permitted, and any truck 
above 24,000 pounds would be prohibited from outdoor, overnight parking.  

 
Create Fencing or Landscaping Requirements for Certain Quantities or Locations 
 

• While not consistently mandated, the Plan Commission has occasionally recommended 
approval of special use requests for outdoor, overnight parking with the condition that the 
petitioner erect a fence or landscaping be planted on the property where vehicles will be 
parked. The Plan Commission could require that businesses wishing to store a certain 
number of vehicles or those bordering a residential area erect a fence or install landscaping 
on the property line. For example, the Plan Commission recommended that PermaSeal 
fence their parking lot due to the property’s location bordering a residential neighborhood 
on Hamilton Avenue. The Zoning Ordinance currently states that in non-residential areas, 
permanent landscaping screening shall be provided that is at least 4’ tall in front yards and 



 
 

permanent peripheral screening at least 5’ tall in side and rear yards, both adjacent to 
parking areas. In certain cases, the Plan Commission has added the condition that taller-
than-standard landscaping be planted if outdoor, overnight parking is permitted.  

 
As part of any of the above options, staff does not recommend allowing semi-trucks to be parked 
outdoors, overnight. Few properties in the Village are equipped to receive semi-trucks, thus 
negating Burr Ridge as an option for companies that rely on these vehicles as primary to their 
business.  
 
Exhibit A – Proposed Commercial Vehicle Parking Permit 



 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
PROCEDURES FOR PARKING PERMIT 

Commercial Vehicle Parking 

 

The Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance regulates outdoor, overnight commercial vehicle 
parking in Manufacturing Districts in the Village. A permit is required for outdoor, overnight 
commercial vehicle parking. 
 

The following is required with a permit application for outdoor, overnight commercial 
vehicle parking:  
Permit Application; A completed permit application must be submitted with the following plans:  
• One copy of a Plat of Survey of the property;  
• Three (3) copies of a site plan (or marked Survey) showing all existing buildings, structures, 

the approximate location of where commercial vehicles will be parked, and the location of any 
required fencing (if necessary; see Zoning Regulations below).   

Plans must be drawn to scale and provide all vertical and horizontal dimensions of the parking lot 
and its design features. The Village will respond to the permit application within ten (10) business 
days of submittal and each subsequent re-submittal.  
 

At the time of permit issuance, the applicant is responsible for the following:  
• A permit fee of $50. 
• If there are deviations from the approved plans, the applicant must contact Village staff to 

review and approve changes. Outdoor, overnight commercial vehicle parking without a permit 
or not conforming to an approved permit is subject to penalties up to $750 per day per the 
Zoning Ordinance.  

• Applicant must complete the construction of any required fences and call for a final inspection 
within 12 months of the date the permit is issued or the permit may be deemed null and void.   

• Permitted times for outside construction of fences by commercial companies are: 
Monday through Friday: 7 AM to 7 PM; Saturday: 8 AM to 5 PM; and is prohibited on Sunday 
and holidays.  

 

Zoning Regulations: Outdoor, overnight parking of commercial vehicles is permitted in 
Manufacturing Districts only as follows:  

a. All vehicles stored outdoors, overnight must be parked behind the front wall of the principal 
building. Outdoor, overnight parking in the front of a property or on the street is prohibited.   

b. Outdoor, overnight parking of semi-trucks and vehicles over 24,000 pounds in gross weight is 
prohibited.  

c. The permit applies to only vehicles owned by the business listed on the permit application. 
Any business seeking a commercial vehicle parking permit must have a valid Zoning 
Certificate of Occupancy.  

d. A 6’ solid fence is required to be placed on the property line if more than 12 vehicles will be 
stored overnight or the property at which the vehicles will be stored borders a Residential 
District. Village staff will confirm whether this regulation is applicable. 

e. Any request for over 30 vehicles requires approval of a special use by the Plan Commission 
and Board of Trustees. 

 
 
 

ewalter
Exhibit A



 

No. Vehicle Make and Model License Complies? 
1.    

2.    

3.    

4.    

5.    

6.    

7.    

8.    

9.    

10.    

11.    

12.    

13.    

14.    

15.    

16.    

17.    

18.    

19.    

20.    

21.    

22.    

23.    

24.    

25.    

26.    

27.    

28.    

29.    

30.    

    

Fence Required? Yes No 

 



 
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Evan Walter 
  Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE: February 14, 2018 
 
RE:  Board Report for February 19, 2018 Plan Commission Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

At its February 12, 2018 meeting the following actions were taken by the Board of Trustees relative 
to matters forwarded from the Plan Commission.  

Z-02-2018: 15W308 North Frontage Road (Wilk); The Board of Trustees concurred with the 
Plan Commission’s recommendation and approved ordinances amending the Zoning Ordinance to 
permit irrigation installation business, with no customers on premises as a special use in the B-2 
Business District, as well as for special uses to permit an irrigation installation business, with no 
customers on premises and outdoor, overnight commercial vehicle parking to Magic Irrigation, 
with all conditions recommended by the Plan Commission included. 

S-01-2018: 16W260 83rd Street (Odeh); The Board of Trustees tabled the recommendation by 
the Plan Commission to deny a variance to Awad Odeh for additional signs at 16W260 83rd Street 
at the recommendation of staff until amendments to the Sign Ordinance are considered.  



02/14/2018 Permits Applied For January 2018 m 
Permit Number Date Applied Property Address Applicant Name & Contact Info Description 

JCAD-18-013 01/29/2018 7001 North Frontage Road Flagg Creek Water Reclamatio 7001 North Frontage Rd. Com Addition 
Burr Ridge IL 60527 

JCMSC-18-006 01 / 16/2018 700 I North Frontage Road Flagg Creek Water Reclamatio 7001 North Frontage Rd. Commercial Miscellaneous 
Burr Ridge IL 60527 

JPR-18-002 01/04/2018 5922 Elm St RS Services Systems, Inc. 3 8 Forestwood Dr. Right-of-Way 
Romeoville IL 60446 

JPR-18-007 01/18/2018 681 Commerce St. RS Services Systems, Inc. 38 Forestwood Dr. Right-of-Way 
Romeoville IL 60446 

JPR-18-008 01/02/2018 6900 Veterans Blvd. RS Services Systems, Inc. 38 Forestwood Dr. Right-of-Way 
Romeoville IL 60446 

JPR-18-009 01 / 12/2018 280 Shore Dr. PirTano Construction Co. 1766 Armitage Ct. Right-of-Way 
Addison IL 60101 

JPS-18-010 01 / 19/2018 7600 County Line Rd South Water Signs 934 N. Church Rd. Sign 
Elmhurst IL 60126 

JRAL-18-004 01/12/2018 157 Lakewood Cir Mak Remodeling LLC 754 Stockley Rd Residential Alteration 
Downers Grove IL 60516 

JRAL-18-0 I I 01 /22/2018 6706 Fieldstone Dr Michael Chowaniec 8425 Park Ave Residential Alteration 
Burr Ridge IL 60527 

JRAL-18-012 01/24/2018 60 I Burr Ridge Club Dr Look Sharp Construction 3515 Vernon Av Residential Alteration 
Brookfield IL 60513 

JRSF-18-001 01/02/2018 61 TOMLIN CIR B & A Builders, Inc. 9901 W. 56th St Residential New Single Family 
Countryside IL 60525 

JRSF-18-003 01 / 15/2018 8390 Waterview CT McNaughton Development 11 S220 Jackson St. Ste IO I Residential New Single Family 
Burr Ridge IL 60527 

JRSF-18-014 01 /29/2018 8310 Waterview CT McNaughton Development I I S220 Jackson St. Ste IO 1 Residential New Single Family 
Burr Ridge IL 60527 

TOTAL: 13 



02/15/2018 Permits Issued January 2018 m 
Permit Number Date Issued Property Address Applicant Name & Contact Info Description 

Value & Sq Ftg 

JELV-17-272 01/23/2018 160 Tower Dr HMS Elevator & Home Mobili 5239 Thatcher Rd Elevator 

Downers Grove IL 60515 

JGEN-17-287 01 /03/2018 140TOWERDR Berglund Construction 111 E Wacker Dr. 2450 Generator 

Chicago IL 6060 I 

JGEN-17-355 01 /08/2018 34 Lancaster Ct Pro Electric, Inc. 2600 Warrenville Rd Generator 

Downers Grove IL 60515 

JGEN-17-361 01 /09/2018 15W2418lstSt. Homeowner Generator 

Burr Ridge IL 60527 

JGEN-17-372 01/11 /2018 3 Navajo Ct ABS Electric, Inc. 6328 Fairmount Generator 

Downers Grove IL 60517 

JPF-17-321 01 / 11 /2018 16W 321 93rd PL Homeowner Fence Permit 

Burr Ridge IL 60527 

JPF-17-375 01 /25/2018 6751 Fieldstone Dr Cedar Mountain Fence Co. 13940 Bambridge Circle Fence Permit 

Plainfield IL 60544 

JPR-17-282 01 /22/2018 8361 Park Ave Lemont Paving Company 11550 Lemont Ave. Right-of-Way 

Lemont IL 60439 

JPR-18-002 01 /09/2018 5922 Elm St RS Services Systems, Inc. 38 Forestwood Dr. Right-of-Way 

Romeoville IL 60446 

JPR-18-007 01 / 18/2018 681 Commerce St. RS Services Systems, lnc. 38 Forestwood Dr. Right-of-Way 

Romeoville IL 60446 

JPR-18-008 01 / 18/2018 6900 Veterans Blvd. RS Services Systems, Inc. 38 Forestwood Dr. Right-of-Way 

Romeoville IL 60446 

JPS-17-374 01 /04/2018 224 Shore Ct Sign Outlet 5516 Cal Sag Rd Sign 

Alsip IL 60803 

JRAL-18-004 01 /31 /2018 157 Lakewood Cir Mak Remodeling LLC 754 Stockley Rd Residential Alteration 

Downers Grove IL 60516 $44,100 588 

JRES-17-377 01 /04/2018 8512 Walredon Ave Mark Torkelson 8512 Walredon Ave. Residential Miscellaneous 

Burr Ridge LL 60527 

JRSF-17-288 01 / 10/2018 6330 County Line Rd Smart Construction Group, LT 11 W. College Dr Residential New Single Family 

Arlington Heights IL 60004 $1 ,541 ,700 10,278 

JTRLR-17-346 01 /31 /2018 16W 301 91st St Weis Builders 8420 W. Bryn Mawr Av Construction Trailer 

Chicago IL 60631 



02/15/2018 

Permit Number Date Issued 

TOTAL: 16 

Permits Issued January 2018 

Property Address Applicant Name & Contact Info Description 

Value & Sq Ftg 



02/ 15/18 

CO# 

OFl800 1 

OFl8004 

OFl8005 

OFl8006 

OFl8007 

Occupancy Certificates Issued January 2018 

Certificate of Occupancy Date 

01 /02/18 

01 /24/18 

01/30/ 18 

01 /26/ 18 

01 /25/ 18 

Occupant of Record 

Thomas & Elizabeth Moog 

Tim Tack 

Design Bar 

William & Julie Petty 

William & Mary Ryan 

Address 

6280 Grant St 

8385 Waterview Ct. 

880 Villlage Center Dr. 

6130 Elm St 

304 Burr Ridge Club Dr. 



MONTHLY SURVEY OF BUILDING PERMITS - 2018 
(Does not include miscellaneous Permits) 

SINGLE FAMILY ADDITIONS NON- ADDITIONS 

RESIDENTIAL ALTERATIONS RESIDENTIAL ALTERATIONS TOTALFOR 
MONTH (NEW) (RES) (NEW) (NON-RES) MONTH 

JANUARY $1,541,700 $44,100 $1,585,800 
[1] [1] 

FEBRUARY 

MARCH 

APRIL 

MAY 

JUNE 

JULY 

AUGUST 

SEPTEMBER 

OCTOBER 

NOVEMBER 

DECEMBER 

2017TOTAL $1,541,700 $44,100 $0 $0 $1,585,800 
[1] [1] 



360 

340 

320 

300 

280 

260 

240 

220 

200 

180 

160 

140 

120 

100 

80 

60 

40 

20 

0 I 
1 

• 2017 15 

2018 16 

Village of Burr Ridge Building Permits Issued 2017 Compared to 2018 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
I 

13 

15 

16 



35 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

_. 
1 2 

• 2017 0 

• 2018 1 

Village of Burr Ridge New Housing Permits 2017 Compared to 2018 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

_. 
13 

0 

1 



02 /1 5 / 2 018 08: 3 4 AM 

Bre akdo wn o f Pe rmits b y Pro j e c t Type 

Permits Issued January 2018 

Res ident ial New Single Family 
(6%) '\ 

Residential Miscellaneous 
(6%) 

Res ident ial Alteration 
(6%) ~ -. 

.. .... ... , 

Generator / 
4 (25% ) 

\ 

Pe r mits I ssue d J anua ry 2018 

Right-of -Way 
_! 4 (25% ) 

/ 

\~ 

\ . 
·---. Fence Permit 

2 ( 3%) 

············-- -
Sign 

(6%) 

-----~ Construction Trail er 
(6%) 

·----~ Elevato r 
(6%) 

railer 

eva or 

ence ermi 

es iden ialAI era ion 

• Res i en ial iscellaneo 

• Res i en ial ew ·n le amily 

0 Ri h -o -Way 

gn 

Page 1 of 1 

. . 
4----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~-_-__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ ~ ___ ) 



IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIII I
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
II III

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

II III
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

I IIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
II III

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

II III
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
I IIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII

IIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIIIII
II II

I II II
I II II

I II II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIII
IIII III

IIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII

IIIIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIII
II IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
II III

III II
IIIII

IIII I
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

III II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIII I

III II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

III II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

I IIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

II III
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIII I

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

I IIII
II III

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
I IIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
III II

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIII I

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
I IIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIII I
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIII I

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

I III I
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

II III
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

III II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
I IIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
III II

II II I
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

III II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
II III

IIIII
IIII I

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIII I I

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
I IIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIII I
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIIII IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIIII

I IIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
II III

IIIII
IIIII

III II
II III

IIIIII
IIIII

III II
II III

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIII I

I IIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

III II
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

II III
IIIII

IIIII
I IIII

IIIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIIII

IIIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

IIIII
IIIII

II III
III II

I III I
I

ú

ú

ú

ú

ú

ú

Cook County

DuPage County

R-3

R-3

R-3 PUD

R-3 PUD

R-3 PUD

R-A

R-A

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-3
PUD

G-I PUD

G-I

B-2

B-2

O-2

O-2 PUD

O-2 PUD

L-I

R-1

R-4 PUD

R-2

R-2

R-1

R-1

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-2
R-2B

R-2A

R-2A

R-2A

R-2B

R-3
PUD

R-1

R-1

R-3

O-2
PUD G-I

R-3

R-3

R-2AR-2A

R-2B

R-2B R-3
PUD

R-3
PUD

R-2B

R-3
PUD

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

L-I

R-2B
R-3
PUD

R-1

R-2A

R-1
PUD

R-2B

R-2

R-2

R-2A

R-3
PUD

R-
2B

R-
2

R-2B

O-
2 P

UD

R-
5 P

UD

O-
2 P

UD

O-2
PUD

R-3
PUD

R-3
PUD

R-3
PUD

R-2B

T-1

GATE

GATE

GATE

GATE

GATE

R-1

R-2A

R-3

R-2A

GATE

B-1

B-1
PUD

B-2

B-2 PUD

G-I

G-I PUD

L-I

L-I PUD

O-1

O-2

O-2
PUD

O-2 PUD

R-1

R-1 PUD

R-2

R-2

R-2A

R-2B
R-2B
PUD

R-3

B-2
PUD

R-3 PUD

R-4 PUD

R-5

R-6

R-A

T-1

R-2B

M AD ISON ST

HONEY SUC KLE
ROSE ST

AL
LIS

ON
 CT

I 55

DOLFORC V

ASHBURY
DR

GLENMORA LN

RIDGE
FARM RD

EL
M S

T

THERESE CT

60TH PL

GODAIR CIR

IVY LN

CL
AR

EN
DO

N H
ILL

S R
D

KRAML DR

63RD ST

CHESTNUT
HILLS CIR

AIN
TR

EE
 LN

RODEODR

93RD PL

JEANS RD

HILL RD

PACIFICCT

DE
VO

N C
T

BURR RIDGE CLUBDR

91ST ST

RO
AN

OK
E

CT

RIDGEMOOR DR

FALLI NGWATERDRE

TIMBERRIDGEDR

CA
SC

AD
E

CT
 W

83RD ST

GA
RF

IEL
D S

T

W ILLOW
WAY

DEVON
RIDGE CT

KE RI LN

CIR
CL

E
RID

GE
 CT

BAYRUM C T

RA
LE

IGH
 RD

CA
SC

AD
E

CT
 E

BALMORAL
CT

62ND ST

BONNIE BRAE LN

MIDWAY DR

WIL

DWOOD LN

AS
TO

NY
 CT

SADDLE CT

KENMAREDR

WE DG EWO OD DR

BRISTOL CT

WATERFORD DR

T ORI
CT

90TH ST
ENCLAVE CT

LA
KE

RID
GE

CL
UB

DR

MALIBU CT

TURNBERRY CT

BIRCHWOOD CT

OA K CR EEK DR

BENNACOTTLN

THURLOWDR

KINGSWOOD RD

RODGERS ST

LAUREL
OAK CT

CAMELOT DR

PRAIRIERIDGE CT

CAITLINC TADAMS S T

WOODLAND
PARK CT

KIM
BE

RL
Y C

T

OA
KR

IDG
E

DR
W

JAC
KP

INE
S

LN

SOMERSET
CT

BROOKVIEW CT

CO
UN

TY
 LIN

E R
D

NORMAN CT

81ST

C T
MAPLEWOOD CT

COTTONWOOD CT

CL
YN

DE
RV

EN
 RD

PARKVIEW PL

FOREST
EDG ED R

ELEANOR PL

BRIDLE CT

PA
RK

 AV
E

FALLINGWATER DR

FAW

N

CT

WEDGEWOOD LN

95TH PL

CARLISLE CT

FIELDSTONE CT

BLUFF RD

HUNTER CT

FERN ST

CHESTNUT
HILLSDR

MEADOWBROOKDR

SU
TT

ON
 PL

HIGHLAND CT

OLD OAK CT

CO
VE CT

HA
NO

VER
CT

LAKE
RIDGE CT

RU
TH

LA
KE

CT

BEL-AIRE
CT

TANGLEWOOD LN

REGENT CT

WINGATERD

CLARENBROOK
CT

VALL EYVIEW DR

HILLSIDE LN

MA
RISS

AC
T

HEATHER CT

MOCKINGBIRD LN

SUNSET RIDGE RD

73RD ST

CH
AU

CE
R R

D

OXFORD RD

CENTRAL AVE

CHESTERFIELD CT

CREEKSIDE CT

58TH ST
KIN

GE
RY

QU
AR

TER

CHARLESTON DR

CH
ILD

SA
VE

DE
VO

N
RID

GE
 DR

BRIDGET CT

COUNTRYSIDE
CT

ELM CT

ASHTON DR

CONWAY
CT

CASCADE CIR

TUMBLEBROOK
CT

SU
NR

ISE
A V

E

LAKEWOOD CIR

MONROEST

RO
YAL

DR

FOREST
EDGE CT

DEERTRAIL CT

CL A Y MO
RE

RD

BRIAR WOOD DR

CLUBSIDE CT

OA
KH

ILL
CT

ALICIA CT

56TH ST

CO
VE

 CR
EE

K C
T

PINE TREE LN

HERITAGE
DR

GID
DIN

GS
 AV

E

ELMWOOD
PL

CIRC LERIDGE D R

FRONTAGE RD

57TH ST

RIDGEFIELD LN

KEL LER
DR

GRANT CT

FA
RS

CO
VE

WATER FOR DCT

QUINCY ST

DEVON DR

BODIN S T

WI
ND

SO
R

CT

60TH ST

MARYBETH CT

WA
TE

RV
IEW

 CT
TU

RNBERRY DR

VINE ST

ANDREW CT

QU
INC

Y C
T

SHENANDOAH CT

CAMBRIDG E
DR

87TH ST

SHILOH CT

DARTMOUTH CT

HIG
HLA

ND
RD

SHEPHARD
LN

PEPPER
MILL CT

HEATHROW
CT

WOODGATE CT

SOMERSET RD

MEADOW
CT

SEDGLEY
CT

JAM
IE 

LN

64TH ST

ROCKWELL
CT

MA
RT

I N
DR

K INGSWOOD

CT

STONEGATE CT

ARCADIACT

WOODGATE
DR

EC
HO LN

SHAD OW
CREEK DR

MORGAN CT

BR
EN

TW
OO

D
LN

CAST INEST

CH ERRYWOOD LN

73RD CT

MEAD OW LN

SYLVAN
GLEN CT

VETERANS BLVD

EXECUTIVE DR

EL
M A

VE

KATHRYN CT

NO
RM

AN
DE

E
CT

TREMONT RD

JAC
KS

ON
 ST

68TH PL INTERNATIONAL ST

BR
ET

ON
LA

KE
SD

R

CAB E RNET CT

59TH ST

BR
IAR

 RD

55TH ST

8TH ST

9TH ST

61ST PL

GARFIELD
RDG

WE
SL

EY
 RD

PROVENCAL
DR

MA

LLORYCT

GA
RF

IEL
D A

VE

POLO RIDGE CT

LANECT

WO
O D

MERE DR

80TH ST

PL
AZ

A C
T

SHORE CT

ROGERS CT

SHE FFI ELD S T

FAL LIN
GW

ATE
RDR W

HIDDEN
LAKE DR

94TH PL

VILLAGERD

NORRIS DR

TODOR CT

ME
ADOWBROOK

LN

CHAUCER CT

WESTMINSTER DR

HY
AC

INT
H D

R

CAMB RI DGE RD

LE ONARD LN

75TH ST

PA
LIS

AD
ES

 RD

NIELSON LN

58TH PL

LIL
AC

 LN

OL D SURRE YR
D

SU
NS

ET
 RD

WOOD CRE
EK

DR

LAK E R I DGE DR

LAKEVIEW LN

77TH ST

ON
EIL

L D
R

TAMERTON PKWY

69TH ST

KIRKWOOD COVE

CIR C LE
AVE

HIGH GROV E B LVD

SOPER RD

68TH ST

WA
LR

ED
ON

 AV
E

94TH ST

DEER PATH TRAIL

LAKE DR

GRANTS T

WA
SH

ING
TO

N S
T

CHANTICLEER DR

ENCLAVEDR

DR
EW

 AV
E

WI
LLI

AM
 DR

BR
OO

KB
AN

K R
D

CARRIN GT
O N

CIR

82ND ST

RIDGEP OI NTE D R

HE
AT

HE
R D

R

HA
MIL

TO
N A

VE

GL
EN

N D
R

IL 8
3

THURLOWST

SK
YL

INE
 DR

PLAINFIELD RD

MA
HO

NE
Y D

R

81ST ST

OA
K S

T

WIL
LOWBROOK CENTRE PKWY

TIMBERLAKE DR

SH
ORE DR

FIELDSTONE DR67TH PL

HARVESTER DR

89TH ST

OAK RIDGE DR E

COMMERCE ST

CHARLESTON RD

SOUTH FRONTAGE RD

97TH ST

SOUTHGATE CT

ORCHARD ST

BIE
LBY

AVE

STE EPL ESID E DR

EASTGATE RD

PUBLIC ST

BUEGE LN

ADLAI STEVENSON EXPY
70TH PL TRI-STATE TLWY

FA
IRW

AY
DR

DRAGON FLY

HO
WA

RD
 AV

E

HESS AVE

80TH PL

BRIDEWELL DR

OMAHADR

INDEPENDENCE DR

BIRCH LN

WHITE
OAK CT

STRATFO RD DR

ACACIA DR

GREGFORD RD

WI
LLO

W 
SP

RIN
GS

 RD

TAFT RD

114
TH

ST

STIRRUP LN

CA NDL E LIG
HT

DR

SHAG
BARKLN

79TH ST

PRESC OT
TL

N

SC
HO

OL
 AV

E

10TH ST

THUNDERBIRD DR

SHADY LN

LIN DEN LN

CHASEMOOR DR

72ND ST

HARDING R D

PHEASANT
HOLLOWDR

LINDEN CIR

CROWN CIR

STIRRUP
PL

OAKKNOLL DR

WOODSIDELN

WOOD LA
N D

DR

LA
UR

IE 
CT

OAK WERTHLN

RAINFORD
LN

NUEPORT
CT

RI DGEWOODDR

SCEN IC
DR

A RROWH EA
D

FA RMDR

BIG BEAR CT

BRIARWOOD LN

WOODVIEWRD

PONT IAC DR

TUDOR CIR

SEN EC A C
T

TECUMSEH DR

DAISY MDW

WI
LLO

W
WE

ST
 DR

OLDMILLLN

CH
EL

SE
A L

N

WOODLAND
CT

CR
ES

TVIEW DR

DO
RY

LN

McCLINTOCK DR

CLOVER MDW

SHAGBARK CT

GA
RY

WOOD DR

NAVAJO CT

KEOKUK RD

ARROWHEAD CT

BRIGHTONPL
SHABBONARD

MILDRED CT

HILLCRESTCT

LAWN CIR

BUTTE
RC

UP
BAN

K

INDIAN
WOODS DR

71ST ST

WOLFRD

PIN
E

CR
ES

T C
T

ROSEM ERE
CT

HIL
LC

RE
ST

DR

CREST LN

INDIAN
HEAD TRL

SANTA
FE LN

RIDGEWOOD LN

WOODLAND
LN

DE
ER

CR
EST

LN

BIG
BEAR DR

POTAWATOMIE
TRL

WOODLAND AVE

ERIN
LN

LINCOLNSHIRE DR

GO
LFV

IEW
 DR

JOHNSTON RD

GERMAN CHURCH RD

NUEPORT DR

MANORDR

CA
ST

LE
CT

SIOUX TRL

AMBRIANCE! DR

BURR OAK L N

CARRIAGE PL

JOYCE
LN

FO
RE

ST
 HI

LL 
RD

T OWER
RD

LE
E C

T

STA
RK

 DR
EASTON PL

AR
IZO

NA
 TR

L

85TH ST

CREST
C T

CROWN
CT

85TH PL

PL
EA

SA
NT

VIE
WR

D
WOODSIDE CT

ALGONQUIN
DR

CO
UN

TY
LIN

EL
N

WAUBENSEE LN

LONGMEADOW LN

53RD ST

SOUTH
DR

WALNUT CT

TRENT
CT

JOLIET RD

TOMLIN DR

HAMPTONCT

7TH ST

COCHISE DR

C HIPPEWA
CT

54TH ST

5TH AVE

APACH E
DR

REGENCY CT

DE
ER

V I
EW

CT

RUCCI CT

T OMLIN CI R

CIRCLE DR

MAPLEWOOD RD

CR
EE

KW
OO

D D
R

86TH ST

HIL
LS

DA
LE

RD

STJAMES
C T

BURR RIDGE PKWY

MAPLE LN

RIDGE LN

DOUGSHIRE
CT

WA
TER

SIDE

PL

OAK LN

GRANDAVE

CARRIAGE WAY

PAMELA CIR

NORT HGATE
P L

I N DIAN WOOD LN

PARKPL

LAW
N DR

RAILROAD AVE

84TH PL

FA
IR 

EL
MS

 AV
E

BU
CK

TR
AIL

 DR

FOX LN

BLACKHAWKDR
O RLAK DR

GREYSTONECT

FIE LDCR EST AVE

LONGWOOD DR

71ST PL

LIFETIME DR

WIL
DF

LO
WE

R L
N

ARBOR AVE

NORTH FRONTAGE RD

PARK LN

MCKI NL EYLN

DA
NA

 W
AYFOX

BO
RO

UGH PL

OA
KG

RO
VE

AV
E

WOODGLEN LN

GRE EN BR IA RC T

CHEROKEE DR

CLEVELAND RD

CO
MM

ON
WE

AL
TH

AV
E

CRESC
ENT

CT

POST RD

OS C EOLATRL

VILLA
GE

CENTER DR

WI
LS

ON
 LN

SURREY LN

ARROWHEAD TRL

BLACKHAWK TRL

CROSSCREEK COURT

73RD PL

74TH ST

LA
UR

IE 
LN

MA
PL

E A
VE

TOWER DR

SAVO

Y CLUB CT

114
TH

 AV
E

HINSDALE
CLARENDON

HILLS

WILLOWBROOK

DARIEN

UNINCORPORATED
DU PAGE COUNTY

WESTERN
SPRINGS

COUNTRYSIDE

INDIAN HEAD
PARK

WILLOW
SPRINGS

COOK COUNTY

Zoning District Map

EAZ, Burr Ridge Public Works, 2/2016

Propert ies abut t ing County Line Rd are subject  
to the County Line Rd Overlay Regulations:  
Sec., VI.G of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance. 

Prepared for the Burr Ridge Board of Trustees on February 12, 2018

Zoning District Classifications
R-1: Single Family Residence 5.0 Acres
R-2: Single Family Residence 2.0 Acres
R-2A: Single Family Residence 40,000 ft²
R-2B: Single Family Residence 30,000 ft²
R-3: Single Family Residence 20,000 ft²
R-4: Single Family Residence 20,000 ft² or PUD
R-5: Residential District (80 Ac. Minimum)
R-6: Residential and Congregate Care
B-1: Retail Business
B-2: General Business
T-1: Transitional
R-A: Research-Assembly
L-I: Light Industrial
G-I: General Industrial
O-1: Small Scale Office District
O-2: Office & Hotel
Planned Unit Development
Pre-Annexation Agreement

Burr Ridge Corporate Limits
Other Village Limits

IIIII
IIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII County Boundary
Surface Water

Revisions 
1/97 Base Map Update 
3/98 Base Map Update 
3/99 Base Map Update 
2/00 Base Map Update 
1/01 Base Map Update 
4/02 Base Map Update 
3/03 Base Map Update 
1/04 Base Map Update 
2/05 Base Map Update 
1/06 Base Map Update 
1/07 Base Map Update 
1/08 Base Map Update 
4/09 Base Map Update 
1/10 Base Map Update 
9/12 Base Map Update 
1/13 Base Map Update 
1/14 Base Map Update 
2/15 Base Map Update 
2/16 Base Map Update 
1/17 Base Map Update 
2/18 Base Map Update 

²
0 10.25 0.5 0.75

Miles

R-3

CJ 
D 
D 
CJ 
D 

CJ 
CJ 

1-•• - •• - •• -I • • I , .......... ; 
.----------' . ' I 
i.,_., __ ,_ .. : 

- -

I 

I 

-- - - -

DuPage County 

Downers 
Grove 1 
North; 

DownHS ,; Grovr 

Tow nsh1p Key 

-- -\, 

~ 

Cook County 

Lyons 'i 
~ " ' 

Palos 

I 

> 

-

• 

,. 

,----------'----

..... 

• 

• 

! 
i 

! 
'· ·,. 

.. 

·-· ·, .. 
\ 
i 
'"! 
i 
... i 

i 
I 

I 

n 

ITIJ~~~~~ · F;~-~...,,:;:~ ~~-: 
0 c4---...f-----, 

) 

... 
• 

T 

\11--------------, 

J 

{ 

) 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MEMORANDUM 

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 

Evan Walter, Assistant to the Village Administrator 

February 8, 2018 

PC-04-2018; 7656 Wolf Road; Request for Private Sanitary Sewer System 

The petitioner is Vilmantas Vencolvas, owner of the property at 7656 Wolf Road. Mr. Venclovas 
has applied for a permit for a new home to be built on the property which would be served by a 
private sanitary sewer system. Section IV.L of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance requires all new 
homes "shall be served by public or community sewer and water systems." For properties in areas 
that are not served with public sewers, private or individual sewage disposal (septic) systems may 
be permitted subject to review by the Plan Commission and approval by the Board of Trustees. 
Section IV.L further states that approval to build a new home with a private sanitary sewer system 
may be recommended by the Plan Commission and approved by the Board of Trustees if it is 
determined "that it is impractical to extend public or community sewer ... to serve the area, and (b) 
there is an irrevocable commitment by the owners of the lot that connections shall be made to a 
public or community sewer .... system not less than six months after any such system has been 
installed or extended to serve the lot. This section of the Zoning Ordinance also requires that lots 
with private sewer systems be at least 150 feet wide and one acre in area. 

The Village Engineer has reviewed the petitioner's request and submitted a report regarding the 
proposal (Exhibit A). The Village Engineer had originally requested that the petitioner attempt to 
gain an easement from the neighboring property at 11310 W. 77th Street to connect to the public 
system on 77th Street. Staff concurs with the petitioner's assertion that a good faith effort was made 
to do so, but the neighboring property owner has stated that they are not interested in such an 
agreement. Because the petitioner was unable to obtain an easement from a neighboring property, 
no connection to a gravity-fed public sanitary system staff is possible within 1000 feet of the 
property. The petitioner' s property meets both the size and width requirements for installing a 
private sanitary sewer, and the petitioner has already received a permit from the Cook County 
Department of Health for this endeavor (included in Exhibit B). In considering each of these 
factors, staff has no objection to the proposed private septic system design at 7656 Wolf Road. 

Appendix 

Exhibit A - Report from Village Engineer 

Exhibit B - Petitioner' s Materials 



EXHIBIT A 

MEMO 

To: Evan Walter, Assistant Community Development Director 

From: David Preissig, P.E., Director of Public Works & Village Engineer 

February 14, 2018 Date: 

Subject: Septic System Concurrence for 7656 Wolf Road (PIN 18-30-401-015-000) 
Permit No. 17-236 

The following is an assessment of the private sanitary sewer system proposed at 7656 Wolf Road, 
Burr Ridge, Cook County, Illinois: 

Existing and Proposed Conditions: 

1. Proposed residence would be a four-bedroom house constructed on a 2.52 acre lot. 

2. The existing T/F is 630.50, and proposed would be 643.0. 

3. The nearest sanitary sewer maintained by the Village of Burr Ridge is on 77th Street, 
beginning 450 feet west of Wolf Road, having a rim elevation approximately 649.0. 

4. The lot is encumbered by floodway and floodplain from Flagg Creek. 

Per the request of the Village Engineer, the permit applicant proposed an easement and agreement 
to the homeowner at 11310 W. 77th Street that would be necessary to construct a sewer connection 
to the Village sanitary sewer along 77th Street. The property owner at 11310 W. 77th Street has 
stated that they are not interested in this arrangement. 

Therefore, no gravity-fed connection to a municipal sanitary system is possible within 1000 feet 
of the proposed residence. The Village of Burr Ridge does not have plans to provide a sanitary 
sewer along Wolf Road in this area in the near future. 

Costs notwithstanding, the above statements support the concurrence from the Engineering 
Division to install a private sanitary septic system for the proposed new residence at 7656 Wolf 
Road. A statement should be recorded with the property that will require connecting to a municipal 
sanitary sewer system whenever such a facility is constructed to service this property. 

Please contact Village Engineer David Preissig, P.E. if you have any questions regarding the above 
at (630) 323-4733, extension 6000. 

Page 1 ofl 



February 7th, 2018 

Evan Walter 
Village of Burr Ridge 
7660 County Line Rd 
Burr Ridge, IL 60527 

RE: 75656 Wolf Road - Installation of a Private Sanitary Sewer System 

Mr. Walter, 

EXHJBITB 

I am currently in the stage of obtaining permits a_nd final approvals for the demolition of my existing home 
and construction of a new home on the same lot at 7656 Wolf Road, Burr Ridge, IL 60527. At this point, 
the current home is on a private septic system. The plan for the new home will be to abandon and 
eliminate the existing private septic system and to add a new private septic system to support the new 
home. The reason for installing a new septic system and not connect to the public sewer system is due to 
the location of the closest public sewer system in relation to my property. 

The closest public sewer connection point to my property is located up on the hill at 77 th St, which is 
approximately 680 lnft from my property and we do not have direct access to 77 th St. To tie into this 
system, I would be required to install 680 lnft of sewer pipe going through our neighbor's private 
property, along with a new sanitary lift station to pump the sewage up the hill to the existing sewer 
connection. 
Without getting in to the cost of this process (which is 4 times higher than proposed private septic system) 
I would like to state that we were not able to acquire access easement through our neighbor's property 
at 11310 W 77 th Street. After detail explanations of our intentions and few weeks of negotiations with 
Russell and Linda Meyers (owners of 11310 W 77 th St.) they decided to deny our request for the access 
easement. Mr. Russell Meyers sent an email directly to Mr. David Preissig stating his decision. 

Furthermore our new septic system (designed by Carl's Septic Service, Inc.) is already approved by Cook 
County Department of Public Health and MWRD. 

Therefore I am requesting to grant me a permission to install new private septic system, which will service 
the new home. 

If at any point the Village installs a new sewer system along Wolf Rd, which runs in front of my property, 
I will commit to abandoning my private septic system and will connect to the public sewer system within 
6 months of the new system being installed. 

Sincerely, 

Vilmantas Venclovas 
7656 Wolf Road 
Burr Ridge, IL 60527 
708-789-0029 



Carl's Septic Service, Inc. 
COMPLETE ONSITE WASTE WATER SOLUTIONS 

FROM CONCEPT .... TO COMPLETION 

October 23, 2017 

Village ofBmrRidgc 
7660 County Lille Rd 
Burr Ridge, IL 60S27 

RE: 7656 WolfRoad. Burr Ridge, Il. 
Onsite Waste Water Tffillment System 

To whom it may concern 

The proposed sysmn has been designed in accordance with the LD.P JI. Private Sewage Dispersal. Licensing Act and 
Section 90S.20(q) of the Private Sewage Disposal Code. The designed system bas been approved by Cook County 
Health Department on 8/17/17 Approval# 17-027. 

System consists of 
1-Bio Barrier 1.0 NSF 3S0membrane n,aaor and 
2-210 SQFT effluent receiving beds totaling 420 SQFT 
1-60 SQFT water so.ftener n:gimeration discharge tieDch 

The Iocauon of the ~iving beds was chosen directly from the results of the soil evaluation report, supplied by 
Applied Land Analysis Inc on 5-29-2017. 
Soil boring #2 & #3 have a significant thicker aerobic %OD8 2T & 26" respectively than borings #1, #4, #S & #6 which 
range tiom 16" to 10". The plamnentoftbe l'®Civing bed in soils wiCh bigberpenneability aid in the overall 
perl'onnance and longevity of the ctispmsa1 system. 

1n this design. the receiving bed bottom is 10"-12" above the saturated S.H. W.T. which allows for vertical movement 
plus horizonbll movement oftbc treated effluent away from the dispersal beds even in times ofhigh precipitation. 

In closing the dispersal area chosen gives the highest overall perf'onnaooe utilizing best lllllilaged prattices is the design 
ofOositc Waste Water syslm!S.. 

Respectfully submitted 

Kevin JDominidc 
Carl's Septic SetVic:c, Inc. 

20 W 33S.S Frootagc Road Lemont, Illinois 60439 
8()()..479-1495 630-739-149.S 

Fax 630-739--5464 
www.carlsepticservice.com 

1 



COOK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEAL TH 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES UNIT For applicatJon fee, refer to Fee Schedule 

for Environmental Health Programs. 

Incorporated: 

2121 EUCLID AVE. ROOM 250 Unincorporated: 
ROLLING MEADOWS, ILUNOIS 80008-1500 
TELEPHONE (847) 818-2143 New System: V 
FAX (847) 818-21142 Form Reva.w.d August 8, 2012 

17--<trL t 
location: 

Owner. 

Loi: 

Water: 

Building: 

Basement: 

Public Facilities: 

5epllc Tanks: 

Aeration System: 

D istribution System: 

Seepage Field Trench: 

Soit 

< 20,000 Sq. Ft. 

Description of soil 
in 4 foot test boring. 

APPLICATK>N FOR APPROVAL OF SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM 
Repair:----

TownshlpName: __.L=-,'f.~4u.t11><6,__ _________ _ 

Name of Subdivision lJ.iv~ T 'f cJuct::, 
Streetaddress: ·70:r:-h ~o/r Rd. 

Section No. - - ~-- .... o-"------
lot No._. ____ .. Block No. _____ _ 

Name Vi I M.4r<7JH, Y-(('lt}o.•4~ Telephone# Home '7t.l/j ·-J/!n·-dtJZ-'I WOltc _ ___ _ 

Presenl Addras /Z-4,1/; .s -~ dNUT City & Zip C(jde lb4s /bA!.K. ,It. &,,a>fl. •--/ 

(1.) Area )CP/.,59..3,1/3/,, Fr (2.) Fronl11ge Jt,S,q4 Ft (3.) Deplh bUJA4- Ft 

Describe Source •ub/4 e. 6,),(JTa ~ Type ol well pump _________ _ 

Use et!?';,icJo,._,T, ~ l_ Number of bedrooms _!/.__Number of employees _____ _ 

WIii basement be provided? Yea y No __ Plumbing fixtures In basement Yea __ ,,,.,.-_ _ _ No 

# Floor Drains Z # Laundry Tubs ___ # Lavalorles _ __,_/_ # Tollels ..J__ tt. Sump Pumps.,,/ _ _ _ _ 

PLEASE NOTE: FOOTING DRAINAGE MUST NOT BE DISCHARGED TO SEPTIC SYSTEM 

Distance to nearest water supply t!}/1[ fl+e~q / Fl Distance to nearest sanitary sewer ) ~ Ft. 

Number of and fiquld capacity of tanlt or tanks: I {-75'(} %"f -eat: / - 6 f 4~ 

ACCESS OPENING MUST BE PROVIDED OVER BOTH INLET AND OUTLET BAFFLES AND MUST BE EXTENDED TO 
wtTHIN 12 INCHES OF THE FINISHED FINAL SURFACE GRADE. 

Manufacturer of aeration system and Treatment Capacity Gals e, a fd,4rt_fje-t., /, 0 ,IV¥ ,Jj67:J 
Number of Boxes _______ # Outlets _ ________ # Drop Boxes _2. ____ _ 

Bottom area 3«' ,J. <J Linear feet )ti L/:i ktl>L Sq. R "f~ ~;,=;-
Maximum Deplh / ~ 11 

Inches. Are there any Cl'eeks, ditches, or fa"!l drainage lile located within 25 Ft. of seepage 

system? YeS--- No '--" Is this lot In known Rood plain7 Yes V- No -----
Will the existing grade in seepage field area be changed? Yes ___ No &..-- If grade is to be raised, specify 

type and amount of fill ________ ____ ____ _ 

IF MORE THAN 12 INCHES TO FILL, GIVE COMPLETE DETAILS ON PLOT PLAN. 

CUTS OF MORE THAN & INCHES W1Ll NOT BE APPROVED, 

Indicate how surface water will be diverted from seepage field area /J.4 Plfl.. ~"1-:J R..IJ+/ ~ 
Average resuns of six percolation tests ______ Min/inch Date of tests 1>141 2-z ZCJ I 7 
Tests wltnassad by Cook CounCy Department of Public Health Personnel? Ya•----- NO /X. 
Top: ___ f2=~...,:.o.~o1....---=:~:s..z;.=~/--=/~~=--=-✓--~=..:f7-_ ___ Inches _ _ ___ _ 

Next: - -4~~/.=1'l!ll:......,,,=--.i=L.4ri=..!.-'it0 __ ..:...4c..1.H:.i.:A::!:....!/.<.::,:.f.:.!$1:....SL__ _ _ 
Inches ----- ----

Bottom: _ _____________ _ _ _______ Inches _ _______ _ 

_ Deplh of ground water In •8 Inch deep x • Inch diam. Test bollng (Reading to be taken 12 hours or more after boring of 

hole - - ----- If none, check here ___ _ _ _ 

Is existing top soil suitable fo~ seepage lrench backftll? Yes V No __ _ 

'
. ~ ;\ 

lmit of soH lhat could be used for trench backlill __ ...,_w~~------ If not. specify type and amount of soil lhal 

I J rl 
If so, specify max. dep(h ---''-~=--- - -

muat be <!effyerpd to lot for trench backfill. 

(Over) 



'PLOT PLAN: PLOT PLAN, SHOWING DATA LISTED BELOW, IS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE PART OF THE APPLICATION APPROVAL. 

A. Location and Dimensions of Lot Lines, Buildings, Septic Tanks, Catch Basins or Grease Traps, Distribution Boxes, Seepage 
Tile Lines, Sewers, Wells, Water Pipes. Diy Wells, Drain TIies and Ditches or Creeks If localed within 25 feet of seepage field. 

•e. Location of all Sewage Disposal and Water Supply Facllltlas on adjoining lots within 150 feet from facllltles on 
subject lot. In addition, If using an ATP with surface discharge, Indicate that there are no other surface discharges 
within a 118 foot radius from the proposed discharge point In all directions. If no other sewage disposal systems, 
water sµpply facllltles. or discharging A TPs are present, so Indicate. 

C. Construction material of Sewers, Drains and Water Pipes. 

D. Amount and direction of ground slope on lot. If there Is more than 12 Inches variation In elevation in the lot area, topograp hie 
contour Unes at one-foot intervals must be shown and a permanent type benchmalk must be Indicated. All required invert 
elevations shan be related to said benchmark. 

'E. Show location of percolation test holes and soil boring. Holes must be In P{oposed s .. paqe field 

F. Show direction of surface water flow on lot by directional arrows. 

PLOT PLAN MUST BE DRAWN TO SCALE AND FULLY DIMENSIONED. 
"SIGNIFICANT IMPORTANCE 

Notes: 1. The plot plan Is not to be detached from this application. If system Is not Installed within 12 months, plans must be returned to 
the health department for approval. 2. If for any reason this proposed sewage disposal system cannot be Installed as per the approved 
plan, or If the homeowner should desire a change, ii .will be necessary to obtain an approved revision prior to beginning construction of 
the system. 3. All fill used In the seepage field area and for backfilling trenches shall consist of finely divided porous top soil containing 
little or no clay. 4. Provide barrier around proposed seepage field to prevent vehicular soil compaction during construction 

THIS AREA FOR DESIGNER OR ENGINEER USE ONLY 

I hereby certify 11at I have designed this sewage disposal system with due regard to topography, character and porosity or soil prevailing on this lot In 
accordance with the Private Sewage Disposal Act and Gode of the Illinois Department of Public Health. I further certify thal I consider this system 
adequate ·to serve the buHdlng on this lot. 

SIGNED: DATE: f!;- ~ - °k,J] 

License Number: . .::r:L ::/' OJ./9-aos 7-3.9. 

Or Seal; 

THIS AREA IS FOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT.USE ONLY. 

THE PROPOSED SE;WAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM AS DESCRIBED IN THIS APPLICATION IS HEREBY APPROVED. 
. . 

APPROVAL BY THE COOK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEAL TH OF THESE PLANS FOR THIS PROPOSED SEWAGE DISPOSAL 
SYSTEM IS NOT A WRITTEN GUARANTEE THAT ITWILL PROVIDE TROUBLE FREE SERVICE. PROPER INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, AND 
USE WILL DECREASE THE POSS I BIL TY OF FAILURE. 

APPROVAL DATE 

AUG 1 7 2017 

Form Reviewed August 8, 2012 

THIS APPLICAi'ION APPRCt1 

l.'.l 1ST REI 1/.>Y~ /1TTACH[D TO 
"i I :E /.i'f'F'.O\'~ ) S!TF Pl_!>Y 

f.: :;;;c.ou1mDE~"f. OU~ ':S""TH 



17-0;!...7 

Applied Land Analysis9 Inco 

SOIL EVALUATION REPORT 

Project Site: 

7656 Wolf Road 
Lyons Townahip, Cook County, Dlinoia 

Carl's Septic Service, Inc. 
20W335 Sooth Jlrontage Road 

Lemoat, Illinois 60439 

. May 29, 2017 

P.O. Box 651. Plamfield, ll.. 60544 • Telephone (815) 439-6774 • soukup 1920@gmail.com 

I 
l 
l 
1 
I 
i 
1 

I 

I 
' I 

l 
t 
l 
I 
l 
l 

l I i 
! 
l 

l 
! I ~ 
i 
§ 
~ 
i 



INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

The subject property was investigated on May 23, 2017, to describe and classify existing 
soils on the site for the pwpose of imdalling an individual sewage disposal system fur a 
proposed home. The property investigated lies west of Wolf Road in Lyons Township 
(SE 1/4 of Section 30, USN, Rl2E), Cook County, ·Illinois. 

METHODS 

The on-site soil evaluation was conducted in accordance with the 2013 Private Sewage 
Disposal Licensing Act and Code (State Code) issued by the Illinois Department of 
Public Health. Six soils were examined on the property, with the sampling locations 
shown on Figure I. Boring locations were marked in the field with flags. Detailed soil 
profile descriptions collected at each boring location are given at the end of Ibis report. 
These descriptions include sewage loading rates for each soil horizon observed, as 
defined by the Stam Code. Soils observed were correlated t.o the soil legaid used in the 
1979 Soil Survey of DuPa~ and Parts of Cook Counties, lllinois. 

RESULTS 

The soils examined most closely resemble the somewhat poorly drained Beecher (Borings 
1 and 4) and Blount (Borings 5 and 6) series, and the Elliott series that is moderately well 
drained because it is buried by alluvial overwasb {Borings 2 and 3). These soils formed 
in locss overlying silty clay loam till. The seasonal high water table 10 to 27 inches 
below the surf.ace is the limiting layer in these soils. A summary of depths to important 
soil :features observed at the site is given below. 

Feature BQ~#l Boring#2 Boring#3 Boring#4 Bofi3 ~ ----~ #6 
Seasonal high water 1a.ble 16" 2T' 26" 13" 12" 10" 

Observed water table 23" 42° 45n 15" 26" 26" 
Bc:drock >60" >60" >60" >60" >60" >60" 

Mod. slow or slower 16"-22" 27°-60" 26"-60" 20"- 60., 12"-60" 10"-60" 
permeability 28"-60" 

2 

t 

l 
l 
I 
~ 

! 
' ! 
l 
! 

i 
I 
I 
l 
i 

I. 
I 
~ 
l 
l 

i 
I 
~ 

I 
! 
! 
t 
l 
1 
! 
l 
! 
i 
I 



Parcel: 7656 Wolf Road 
Lyons Township, Cook County, Hlinois 

BORING # ___ 3 __ SOIL SERIES: _E_lll;;;,;;ott •• ,;;;,,;bu;;;:..ri=ed.a:...... ________ DRAJNAGE CLASS: Moderately well 
DEPTH TO LIMITING LAYER: 26" (seasonal h"IOh water table) 

Dl!PTH DMNT.COI.OR REDOX 

HORIZON llnchell MUNIEU. FEATUR!I COATINGS STRUCn.JRE 

A 0- 17 10VR3/2 - - 2nwbk 

Ab 17 -21 10YR 2/1 - .. 1mar 

Btb1 21-28 10VR4/3 r2d2.5Y5/2 fd 10YR 312 2mabk 

Btb2 28-41 10YR 5/4 CICl.ftl/2. 10VR4' cd10YR~ 2fpr/2mabk 

2Btb3 41-48 10YR 5/3 IIIIUY112.10VR4' fd 1DYR 412 1 rnor/2mabk 

2Ca 48-60 2.SY 5/2 m2D10YR518 - Oma 

REMARKS: Water table observed at 45 Inches 

BORING# ____ 4 __ SOIL SERIES: Beecher taxadjunct 
DEPTH TO LIMITING LA YER: 13u (seasonal hiah water table) 

DEPTH DMNT.COI.OR REDOX 

HORIZON tw:t.Bl MUNll!LL FEATURES COATINGS 8TRUCTUR! 

A 0-7 10YR 3/1 - - 1mgr 

BA 7-13 10YR5/3 12d2.5Y&/2 - 2fabk 

B11 13-20 10YR &13 dil2.l'l'IQ.10VR4111 td10YR'612 21118bk 
2Bt2 20-32 10YR 5/3 GNUYl/2, 10'ffll,.. fd10YR"'2 1mDr/2mebk 
2ca 32-60 2.5Y 5/2 nrln10YR 1118 - Oma 

REMARKS: Water table obaerved at 15 Inches 

SOIL CLASSIFIER: 

ADDRESS: 
SIGNATURE: 

ASPECT/SLOPE: East /2% 
aotLOROUPI LDG RA TE I Kaat 

TEXTURE CON&. OIGNGROUP '"""· fhft , nnJhr., 
alclovetWuh fr 80NII 0.62 I 0.20 

aN fr SBM 0.89 I 0.25 

alcl fr 8DNII 0.82 I 0.20 

heavvaicl fr 70/IX 0.45 I 0.15 

aicl fi 81/X 0.40 I 0.12 

alcl fl 8O/XII NR / NR 

SAMPLING METHOD: Core 
DRAINAGE CLASS: Somewhat poor1Y 
ASPECT/SLOPE: Northeast / 3% 

80IL. CiROUPI LOG RAT& I Ktlat 

T1!XTUR£ CONS. DIGNGROUP (a.la. fJdt I llnJhr.~ 

Iii fl &BNI 
heawaff fr SON 

lllcl fr 80/VII 
llcl ft 81/X 
aicl fl 80/XII 

SAMPLING METHOD: 
PHONE#: 815-439,,6774 
DATE: 
ISCACERT.# 

05129117 

64 

0.89 I 0.25 
0.75 I 0.30 

0.62 I 0.20 

0,40 I 0.12 

NR / NR 

Core 



Parcel: 7656 Wolf Road 
Lyons Township, Cook County, Illinois 

BORING# 5 SOIL SERIES: Blount DRAINAGE CLASS: Somewhat l)()Orly 

DEPTH TO LIMITING LA YER: 12D (seasonal hiah water table) ASPECT/SLOPE: East/ 2% 
DEPTii DMNT. COLOR REDOX SOI.GIi( LDG RATE / KNl 

HORIZON llncllffl MUNSELL FEATUR£S COATINGS 8TAUCTURE TEXTURE CONS. DSGNGF '" 1a_ fJdl / (lnAII'.) 

A 0-2 10YR 3/1 - - 1mar all fr 6B/VI 0.69 I 0.25 

BE 2-12 10YR 5/-4 r:1112.SY 512 ftl 10\'R 613 1fabk heaw sil fr 5BNI 0.69 I 0.25 

Bt1 12-16 10YR 51-4 cailUYS/2.W'l'RG fd10YR4/2 2mabk heavy elcl fr 70/IX 0.45 I 0.15 

2Bt2 16-31 10YR 6/3 ~2.IY112.fflft4'1 fd 10YR •12 1iT1nrl2msbk aicl fl 81/X 0.40 J 0.12 

2Ca 31-80 2.5Y 5/2 1121110YR5/8 - Oma slcl fl 80/XII NR J NR 

REMARKS: Water table observed at 26 inches 
SAMPLING METHOD: Core 

BORING # __ 6 __ SOIL SERIES: ..;;;;B ... lount= ___________ ORAINAGE CLASS: Somewhat poorly 
DEPTH TO LIMITING LA YER: 1 0" (seasonal h 

D!P1H DUNT.COLOR Rl!OOX 

HORIZ0H nn1111a1 MUNIEU. FBATUREI 

A 0-1 10YR 311 -
BE 1 -10 10YR 514 12d 2.5Y 5/2 

Bl1 10-19 10YR 5/4 a,t 2J\' Ml, 1IMI ff 

2Bt2 18-28 10YR513 1211Lfl'l/ll,10YR4111 

2Ca 28-60 2.5Y 5/2 m21110YR518 

REMARKS: Water table observed at 26 Inches 

SOIL CLASSIFIER: 
ADDRESS: 
SIGNATURE: 

ah water table) 

COATlNG8 STRUCTURE 

- 1mar 

l'd10YR6/3 1fsbk 
fd 1D'ffl 4/2 2mlbk 

fd 10YR4/2 1 - k 

- oma 

ASPECT/SLOPE: east/ 2% 
IOILGRC LDG RAT! f Kat 

TEXTURE CONI. DIGNCII ta.la. f.ld\ I flnAlr.1 

all fr 5BIVI 0.69 I 0.26 
heawall fr 5BNI o.ee I o.25 
heawalcl fr 70/IX 0.45 I 0.15 

alcl fl 61/X 0.40 I 0.12 
sicl fi 60/XII NR I NR 

SAMPLING METHOD: Core 
PHONE t: 815-439•6774 
DATE: 
ISCACERT.# 

05/29/17 
64 



,
Sc.--~ (t!_ '. t '~ i:::: 'to 

. l 

Figure 1. Approximare locations of soil borings on the sul!ject property. 

3 

· XI 

! 
[ 

' l 

I 
1 

\ 
j 

l 



Parcel: 7656 Wolf Road 
Lyons Township, Cook County, Illinois 

BORING # ____ 1 ____ SOIL SERIES: Beecher taxadjunct DRAINAGE CLASS: Somewhat poorly 
DEPTH TO LIMITING LA YER: 15" (seasonal hlah watertablel ASPECT/SLOPE: East/ 3% 

DEPTH DMNT.COLOR Rl!D0X 801LGROUPI LDGRATI! / Kaat 

HORIZON tlnchul MUN8EI.L FEATURES COATINGS 8TRUC1\IR! TEXTURE CONS. DIGNQROUP (aJa. fJdl I 11n.11or.1 

A o-o 10YR~ - - 1rnar all fr 5BM 0.69 I 0.25 

BA 8-18 10YR4/3 - fd 10YR 3r.! 2msbk llahtslcl fr 6DNII 0.62 I 0.20 

Bt1 16-22 10YR 614 OZIIUY!i/2,1Cll'R4/e fd 10YR 412 1ml)f'/2mabk heavvalcl fr 70/IX 0.45 I 0.16 

2Bt2 22-28 10YR 5/4 aUUY"'2.11Mt<W rd 10YR 412 1 n,pr/2rnsbk alcl fr 6HMII 0.52 I 0.15 

28t3 28-40 10YR 6/4 ctdUYll2,10VR.W fd 10YR 412 1 mor/2mabk llcl fl 81/X 0.40 I 0.12 

2C 40-80 10YR 5/4 QIUVll/:l,1111'11,W - Oma alal fl 80/XII NR / NR 

REMARKS: Water table observed at 23 inches 
SAMPLING METHOD: Core 

BORING #_-...2 __ SOIL SERIES: _E_lll __ ott, ___ bu_rl_ed _________ ORAJNAGE CLASS: Moderately well 
DEPTH TO LIMmNG LA YER: 27" (seasonal hiah water table) 

DePffl DMNT,COlOR REDOX 

HORIZON Ollch•l IIUNSIIJ.. FEATUREI COATWGS 

A 0-10 10YR 3/1 - -
Ab 10-27 10YR 211 - -

8tb1 27-35 10YR412 - md 1oYR2/1 

2Blb2 SS-48 10YR 5/3 Clll:UVll2,10VIU,'II fd 10VR 412 

2Ca 48-80 2.5Y51'l rn2D 1 DYR 1518 -

REMARKS: Water table observed at 42 Inches 

SOIL CLASSIFIER: 
ADDRESS: 
SIGNATURE: 

Todd A. Soukup 
P.O. ~. Pla,lnfiield, IL 60544 

~Ill/-;/ .. ,,}--' 
I 

STRUCTUFIE 

1mabk 

1mar 
1 mDl'/2mabk 

1mor/2msbk 

Oma 

ASPECT/SLOPE: East/3% 
IOILGROUP/ LDG RATE / KNI 

TEXTURE CONS. OHNGROUP la.la. f.Jd'I I /lnJhr,1 

811 overwaeh fr 5BNI 0.69 I 0.25 
,M fr 6BNI 0.89 I 0.25 

haavvtlcl fr 70/IX 0.45 I 0.15 
elcl fl 81/X 0.4'0 I 0.12 
alcl fl 80/XII NR / NR 

SAMPLING METHOD: Core 
PHONE#: 
DATE: 
ISCACERT.# 

815-439-677 -4 
05/29/17 
64 

,) . 



S-02-2018: 7600 County Line Road (Shirley Ryan Ability Lab); Requests conditional sign approval 
pursuant to Section 55.05.B to approve a ground and wall sign in a T-1 Transitional District. 

HEARING: 
February 19, 2018 

TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 

FROM: 
Evan Walter 
Asst. to the Village Administrator 

PETITIONER: 
Shirley Ryan Ability Lab 

PETITIONER STATUS: 
Property Owner 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
Shirley Ryan Ability Lab 

EXISTING ZONING: 
T-1 Transitional District 

LAND USE PLAN: 
Recommends Offices 

EXISTING LAND USE: 
Medical Clinic 

SITE AREA: 
2.61 Acres 

SUBDIVISION: 
None 

-
-

-

~ 

~ 

--
• 

I I 

I ~----t 
77TH sr- ~---

a:: 
0 



Staff Report and Summary 
S-02-2018: 7600 County Line Road (Shirley Ryan Ability Lab); Conditional Sign Approval 
Page 2 of2 

The petitioner is the Shirley Ryan Ability Lab, owner of a medical clinic currently under 
construction at 7600 County Line Road. The petitioner is requesting conditional sign approval for 
a ground sign and wall sign in a T-1 Transitional District. The Sign Ordinance states ground and 
wall signs in Transitional Districts are subject to conditional approval by the Plan Commission 
and the Board of Trustees. The Sign Ordinance states that one [ground] sign may be allowed for 
each multi-family residential or non-residential lot or parcel provided it does not exceed 50 square 
feet in area, is located 10 feet from all lot lines and does not exceed 8 feet in height, while one 
[wall] sign may be allowed for each multi-family residential or non-residential lot or parcel 
provided it does not exceed 16 square feet in area. The wall and ground sign both comply with all 
aspects of the Sign Ordinance and requires only conditional approval. 

The Plan Commission [may] recommend approval of a Conditional Sign [if] it finds that the sign 
will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this Chapter as described in Section 
55.01 herein, that the sign will not adversely impact or be a detriment to the surrounding area, that 
the sign will be in character with the site design and building architecture of the property on which 
it is located, and only when the sign will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

Public Hearing History 

In 2016, the Shirley Ryan Ability Lab was granted several variations related to building setbacks 
and parking lot design along with a special use for a medical office in a Transitional District. 
Signage was not considered at this hearing. 

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 

If the Plan Commission chooses to recommend conditional approval of the ground and wall signs, 
they should be made subject to compliance with the submitted plans. 

Appendix 

Exhibit A - Proposed Sign Elevations 

Exhibit B - Petitioner's Materials 



Site Map 

7 
J 
·1 

I 

j, 
I 
l 
1· 
' ~ 

~y 

- r 

' 
' ' 

' 

:=----:::D 

4 
• I '.I 

( South Water Signs 

EXHIBIT A 

Cllv.t •rcJert Name & location 

Arcadis -Ability Lab • Burr Ridge 7630 S. Frontage Road 
Burr Rid e IL 

Cl.lStome:-ApptOYal Job Number 

7024313 

Dot• 

01.03.18 

Df'l.wn&y 

!Ill 

N!Vis"'1lS 

01.12.18 MR 
1H~ '.)R,,i,'1 .~G IS FR.0?£R"'"V 

01 lOJTh NATERSlG'.S 
.l.l R'r 1.-'!S c:: R•YR.:)CUC1 1CN 

,\{.':.t!:"• '{,•lJ JY 
SOU-IH ~•,ATER S'Gt~) 



Non-Illuminated Monument Sign 
1/2" = 1' 

D/S Fabricated Aluminum angle cabinet with laminated .125 aluminum 
bleed faces painted white. fabricated reveal painted std. black 

"Shirley Ryan" - 1/4"Th painted acrylic FCO 
"Abilitylab" - 1/2'Th painted acrylic FCO 
"Outpatient. . ." -Applied vinyl graphics 

All FCO letters mechanically mounted flush to monument face 

Removable side panels with counter-sunk screws for install and 
future access. Lifting provisions on top of sign for installation. 

Single steel support welded to steel plates inside cabinet in field 
**Exact mounting and foundation details TBD based on field cond itions 

Qty 1 

3" 

r• --s·-o·~· --

1

, 

r--,--------,-,-- -------,---:1-- 1/4" Th Painted 
Acrylic FCO 

Client 

1/2" Th Painted 
Acrylic FCO 

Applied 
Vinyl Graphics 

Side View 
1/2" = 1' 

Single steel pole mounted in 
concrete pier foundation 
*exact size and specifications TBD on field conditions 

MP32071 • 
Wonder White 

Std. Black 

(south Water Signs 

Arcadis • Ability Lab· Burr Ridge 
Pn:>j«t Name & l.oatlon 

7630 S. Frontage Road 
Burr Rid e IL 

D•te 

01.03.18 01.12.18 MR 

I :-sy ___________ .. Job Number 

7024313 

Colors to Match 
Red 

PMS 185C 

Orange• 
PMS 2018C 

Vinyl to Match 
PMS Cool Gray BC 

:HS D!l\\',1',G IS PROPHIY 
OF S8UrH WATER SIGNS 

.~U R1(,HIS 0~ R~P~UDUCTION 
ilRE RE.\ERVEO BY 

SOUfH W,\TtR SIGNS 



Non-Illuminated FCOs 
1" = 1' 

1/4" thick acrylic FCO letters painted with 
respective colors 

To be pin mounted flush to building exterior 
with clear silicone adhesive 

Qty 1 

...l..........:31+=14"=~utpaflent ancl
0 

__ ~Rehab Cerni 

C1lent 

Csouth Water Signs 

Arcedis -Abmty Lab - Burr Ridge 
Project NMM & Loarion 

7630 S. Frontage Road 
BurrRid e IL 

JcbNumb~r 

7024313 

*Visual of sign placement on next page 

Pate I 
- --------- ~~U8~ 01 .03.18 _ 

INLII CJALL' P:1, 1/0'JNT:~ 
lcTTER,fT .nc .cJGO 

1. ALUlltiJM F.C.O.l.!l1EMOGO 
t ,M'IT.'.-illOW.1:)f~5'£CHD) 
l. !XISTtwW!U.-
' · PlllKlt.'re»fAmll :,!&-ASR!OLRll 

THIS D'\,\W r:G IS rnor~~T'/ 
Ct SOUIH WAlfJO:G'IS 

,\I I RIGHTS 01 RfP:woucrtoN 
ARi R'l'R'l'O RY 

oOJlll ',';,IJ ,R SIGNS 



t_D) CCJ ~Bj 

-- - - - - - - - - ---
I I I 

I I ---~ 
0 -

L 
_, 

I 
I -- -

I 
~EJ ~E..J 

i I 

- -
11111 11 1111 111 111 11 11 : I 11111 111 11 11 1111 1 111 1111 - : 

f '-10 3/4" f liom ~1· 0 , 1 1 ! lu111 li bottom of s-19, 
' I I I I I. I I 
te gra~e 

· ll il i' ffl I - -

I • 
I 

East Building Elevation \ Sign to be centered left to 
right on brick wall 

{.south Water Signs 

Cher,! Prcject ~ & L.cattOn Cate I ~ 
-
Arca- dis--Ab- ility_La_b- -Burr- Rid-ge ____, =763"-'-'0S=. Fro""""nta-ge -Roa_d _ ___. _01 ._03_1_a ___ __. 01 .12.18 MR 

~ rr Rid e IL • 

Custom~ Approval Job Numbe-r I ~ wn ! y _____ __.I ...;.;702;.;.;.431.;.;;.._3 ___ __. _ _ •• ____ ___. ___ ___, 

_J 

I 
I 

I 
I -7 

-7 
I 

THIS DRAW NS iS FWPE~ TY 
OF SOUTH WATER SIGNS 

,\LL RJGH I> Of Kl'~ODUCTIO~ 
ARE RESERVED BY 

SOUTH WATER SIGNS 



EXIIlBIT B 

7660 County Linc Rd, • Bun· Ridge, IL 60527 
(630) 654-8181 Fa.x(630) 654-8269 www.burr-ridgc.gov 

Dear Petitioner: 

Mickey Straub 
Mayor 

Karen J. Thomas 
Village Clerk 

J. Douglas Pollock 
Village Ad1ninistracor 

Attached is a description of the procedures and the required forms l'elative to a request 
for sign variation m· conditional sign approval. The Village of BwT Ridge Community 
Development Department has prepat'ed these documents to allow you to proceed throuah 
the Village's public hearing process with the least amount of procedural difficulties. 
These documents are intended for your review but do not replace the need to consult with 
the Community Development staff throughout the public hearing process. 

If you have any questioM 1-egarding your request for a sign variation or conditional sign 
approval, pl~ contact the following Community Development staff during regular 
Village Hall hours; 

Village of Burr Ridge 
Monday through Friday 

8 A.M. to 5 P.M. 

Evan Walter 
Assistant to the Village Administrator 

(630) 654-8181, ext. 201 o 
ewaJlCJ@bun:•ridge.gov 

The Community Development Depmtment staff is available to provide infonnation and 
guidance throughout the process. A copy of the Village's Sign Ordinance and more 
information about the Community Development Department is available on ow- web site 
at www.byrr-rida:e.~oy. Your cooperation is greatly appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Evan Walter 
Assistant to the Village Administrator 

I 

I 

I 



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
PLAN COMMISSION 

PROCEDURES FOR SIGN VARIATIONS 
AND CONDmONAL SIGN APPROVAL 

The Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission is responsible for reviewing and making 
recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding sign variations and conditionaJ sign approvals. 
The Plan Commission typically meets the first and third Mondays of each month. lhe procedures 
for review of sign variations and conditional sign requests are as follows: 

1. Pre-Application Review - Three Weeks Prior to Meeting: At least three weeks prior to 
the Plan Commission's consideration of a sign variation or conditional sign, the proposed sign 
elevations and a survey or plan indicating sign locations must be submitted to the Community 
Development Department for pre-application review. 

2. Submittal of Request -Two Weeks Prior to Meeting: A sign variation or conditional sign 
approval application, a $200 sign fee, 25 copies of a Plat of Survey, 25 copies of the sign 
elevations, and other appropriate supporting infonnation must be received by the Community 
Development Department at least two weeks prior to the Plan Commission meeting. The 
Plan Commission meets on the first and third Mondays of each month. All oversized plans 
must be folded, colJated, and accompanied by a reduced copy. 

3. Staff Summary: Approximately 3 to 5 days prior to the public meeting, a staff summary 
and report will be published. The summary will be provided to the Plan Commission and to 
the applicant. At the Plan Commission meeting, the applicant should be prepared to discuss 
the issues described in the staff summary. 

4. Plan Commission Consideration: At a regularly scheduled meeting, the Plan Commission 
will consider the request. The Plan Commission's recommendation is based upon 
compliance with standards established by the Sign Ordinance (see attached Findings ofFact
please complete Findings for a sign variation and/or conditional sign approval as may be 
appropriate to your request - check with Village staff if you are not sure). 

5. Board of Trustees Final Decision: The Plan Commission's recommendation will be 
scheduled for final consideration by the Board of Trustees at the next regularly scheduled 
Board meeting (usually one week after the Plan Commission meeting). The Board of Trustees 
has sole authority to grant or deny a sign variation or a conditional sign. 

6. Proceedings After Approval: Upon approval of a sign variation or conditional sign, any 
authorized representative of the property owner may submit an application for a sign permit 
consistent with the Board of Trustees approval. Jf the Board denies the request, no further 
action is needed. 

. I 



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
PETITION FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

PLAN COMMISSION/ ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: 7600 S. County Line Rd PIN # 09-25-402-019 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
PETITIONER : Rehabilitation Institute of Chicago d/b/a Shirley Ryan Abilitylab Attn: Peggy Kirk 

(All cor respondence wil l be direc t ed to t he Petitioner) 

PETITIONER, s ADREss 355 E. Erie Chicago, Illinois 60611 

PHONE: 312-238-1000 

EMAIL: pkirk@sralab.org 

PROPERTY OWNER : MED Properties, LLC STATUS OF PETITIONER: Owner 

OWNER, s ADDRESS: 40 Skokie Blvd. Northbrook, Illinois 60062 PHONE: 847-897-7301 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

PROPERTY ACREAGE/SQ FOOTAGE : 2.613 acres 113856 sq [iEXISTING ZONING : T-1 Trans District 

EXISTING USE/IMPROVEMENTS: Commercial 

SUBDI VISION: Robert Bartlett Hinsdale Countrysicifi 

A CURRENT PLAT OF SURVEY WITH LEGAL DESCRIPTION MUST BE ATTACHED 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST 

PLEASE INDICATE THE TYPE OF PUBLIC HEARI NG REQUESTED AND PROVIDE A DETAILED 
DESCRI PTION OF THE PROPOSED SPECI AL USE, REZONI NG , TEXT AMENDMENT, OR VARI ATION(S) 

I NCLUDING A REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE ORDINANCE SECTION (S) AND REGULATION(S) : 

D Special Use D Rezoning D Text Amendment D Variation(s) 

Requests conditional approval for two signs in a transitional district. 

Please Provide Wri tten Description of Request - Attach Extra Pages If Necessary 

The above information and the attached Plat of Survey are true and accurate to the best 
of my knowledge. I understand the information contained in this petiti on will be used 
i n pr eparation of a legal notice for public hearing . I acknowledge that I will be held 
responsible for any costs made necessary by an error in this peti t i on. 

Robert Merkel Digitally signed by Robert Merkel 
February 8, 2018 Date: 2018.02.08 14:47:44 -06'00' 

Pet i tioner's Si gnature 
Date Petition is Filed 



FINDINGS OFF ACT 

FORA VARIATION PURSUNT TO 1HE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
SIGN ORDINANCE 

The Plan Comm.i5sion' s recomrrendation to approve or deny a Sign Variation request is 
determined by the following standards (as per section 55.39 of the Burr Ridge Sign 
Ordinance). The applicant must provide a response to each of the following findings by 
indicating the facts supporting such findings. 

a) The variation is in hannony with the general purpose and intent of the Sign Ordinance. 

Correct 

b) The plight of the petitioner is due to unique circumstances. 

Correct 

c) The variation is necessitated by practical difficulties or particular hardships created by 
the requirements of the Sign Ordinance; 

Correct 

d) The variation will not alter the essential character of the locality 

Correct 

(Please transcribe or attach additional pages as necessary) 



FINDINGS OFF ACT 

FOR CONDITIONAL SIGN APPROVAL PURSUNT TO THE 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE SIGN ORDINANCE 

The Plan Commi5sion' s recommendation to approve or deny a Sign Variation request is 
determined by the following standards (as per section 55.41 of the Burr Ridge Sign 
Ordinance). The applicant must provide a response to each of the following findings by 
indicating the facts supporting such findings. 

a) The conditional sign request is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the 
Sign Ordinance. 

Correct 

b) The sign will not adversely impact or be a detriment to the surrounding area. 

Correct 

c) The sign will be in character with the site design and buikiing architecture of the 
property on which it is located. 

Correct 

d) The variation will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

Correct. 

(Please transcribe or attach additional pages as necessary) 



   

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Evan Walter 
  Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE:  February 19, 2018 
 
RE: PC-05-2018; Consideration of Amendments to the Sign Ordinance 
 
The purpose of this discussion is to consider amendments to the Burr Ridge Sign Ordinance 
through feedback received by Village businesses. These businesses have not filed official 
requests for text amendments; rather, this petition is staff-led. These requests have centered on 
portions of the Sign Ordinance in which variations may be required for certain businesses to put 
up any sign, as well as requesting some additional flexibility for the businesses in deciding how 
to sign their properties.  
 
Guaranteed Signage Allotments  
 
In Office and Manufacturing Districts, all lots containing buildings with less than 100,000 
square feet of space are permitted to have one wall sign not exceeding 100 square feet per street 
frontage. There are very few buildings that exceed 100,000 square feet of area in the Village, 
most of which have already received sign variations to accommodate their larger footprints-this 
analysis will exclude said properties. Currently, no regulations exist guaranteeing each tenant in 
a multi-tenant property a sign. For example, if a business erected a wall sign on a vacant building 
with two office suites, a business seeking to occupy the second suite would be required to 
petition for a variance to put up any signage. The Plan Commission could amend the Sign 
Ordinance to guarantee a certain number of businesses with private entrances a dedicated 
amount of square footage for a sign. This could be done by dividing the number of private 
entrances by 100 square feet; for example, if the building had three suites, each with private 
exterior entrances, each suite would be dedicated 33 square feet for a wall sign. Such an 
arrangement would guarantee each business a permitted amount of signage while also shrinking 
the overall size of signs. Staff recommends adding a cap on the number of tenants that could 
receive guaranteed wall signage if this type of amendment is desired.  
 
Ground and Wall Sign Mixture 
 
In Office and Manufacturing Districts, all lots containing buildings with less than 100,000 
square feet of space are permitted to have one wall sign not exceeding 100 square feet per street 
frontage. These regulations are unique from other communities in that the Village only permits 

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 



PC-05-2018: Consideration of Amendments to the Sign Ordinance 
February 19, 2018 
 
one sign per parcel, as well as permitting a large amount of signage for said sign. There are few 
small, affluent communities in the region like Burr Ridge who permit signs greater than 50 
square feet in Office and Manufacturing Districts, making Burr Ridge especially generous in 
terms of sign allowance. From the analysis of sign petitions and permit applications, almost no 
petitions were filed to allow for one sign larger than 100 square feet, but rather to permit two 
signs, usually a wall and a ground sign together, that generally totaled less than 100 square feet 
together. The Plan Commission could recommend a mixture of wall and ground signs be 
permitted, with the caveat that each be reduced in size. For example, a lot containing a building 
with less than 100,000 square feet of space could be permitted to have one ground sign per lot 
and one wall sign per street frontage, each not exceeding 50 square feet.  
 
Larger, Premium Ground Signs 
 
A well-maintained building with high-quality amenities increases the real and perceived value 
of the property. A recent trend in sign regulations is to permit larger ground signs if the sign is 
surrounded by year-round landscaping. Currently, Burr Ridge does not require ground signs to 
be landscaped in any form. For example, Glenview states that a ground sign in a commercial 
district may be 120 square feet, but permits the sign to be up to 160 square feet if it is surrounded 
by 2 square feet of landscaping per 1 square foot of the side with the largest sign area (Figure 
1). Glenview also mandates that signs taking advantage of this additional square footage must 
be externally illuminated with focused, ground-installed white LED lights. Additionally, a 
larger sign could be required to be made of premium materials, such as stone or brick, and be 
of a premium signage style, such as a backlit sign (Figure 2). The businesses would benefit from 
having a larger sign on premises, while the village and property owner would benefit from 
having a high-quality sign where a cheaper sign may have stood.  
 

 



PC-05-2018: Consideration of Amendments to the Sign Ordinance 
February 19, 2018 
 

 
 
Clarification of Color Restrictions 
 
The Sign Ordinance presently requires signs with more than three colors to receive conditional 
approval by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees; however, there is no specific language 
stating if any colors are excluded from this regulation. Standard practice by staff has been to 
exclude white from color counts. While staff is not proposing that the limit on colors be changed 
from three, staff is requesting clarification as to which colors, if any, should be expressly 
excluded from this regulation. This change would provide specificity to this section to the Sign 
Ordinance and allow for the Village and businesses to have a clear understanding as to what 
does and does not require conditional approval. 



   

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Evan Walter 
  Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2018 
 
RE: PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Review 
 
Listed below are summaries of all actions considered by the Plan Commission in 2017. Staff is 
presenting this information for the annual Zoning Ordinance review. The annual zoning review 
is an opportunity to identify areas where the Zoning Ordinance may need to be updated to 
remain consistent with the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, to keep up with property trends, to 
resolve conflicts, or address unintended consequences of zoning regulations.   
 
Variations 
 
V-06-2016: 7383 Madison Street (Gofis) 

• Sought variations to permit the construction of a driveway gate on a smaller lot than 
the required 2 acres and with gates located within the required setback of 30 feet.  

• Recommended denial 6-0.  
 
V-01-2017: 1333 Burr Ridge Parkway (InSite Real Estate) 

• Sought variations to permit parking to be located encroaching in the front yard setback 
and to permit additional parking between the building and the corner side lot line. 

• Recommended approval 6-0. 
 
V-02-2017: 10S650 Oak Hill Court (Berliner) 

• Sought a variation to permit a fence in an interior side yard.  
• Recommended approval 7-0. 

 
V-03-2017: 9S155 Madison Street (Piska) 

• Sought a variation to permit a closed, six-foot tall fence in an interior side yard. 
• Recommended denial 5-0. 

 
  

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 



PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Ordinance Review 
February 19, 2018 
 
Special Uses 
 
Z-01-2017: 555 Village Center Drive (Cruickshank) 

• Peak Running requested that the special use they were granted in 2016 be transferred to 
a new address within the Village Center. 

• Recommended approval 4-0. 
 
Z-03-2017: 60 Shore Drive (Restani) 

• Sought a special use for an automobile sales business in a Manufacturing District. 
• Recommended approval 6-0. 

 
Z-04-2017: 705 Village Center Drive (Hampton Social) 

• Sought a special use for a restaurant with service of alcoholic beverages and live 
entertainment in the Village Center. 

• Recommended approval 5-0. 
 
Z-06-2017: 16W260 83rd Street (Odeh) 

• Sought special uses for an automobile sales business and for outside storage/display of 
automobiles for sale. 

• Recommended indoor sales for approval 5-0/recommended outdoor storage for denial 
5-0. 

 
Z-07-2017: 208 Burr Ridge Parkway (County Wine Merchant) 

• Also requested a text amendment; sought to include Wine Boutique with ancillary 
service of wine and beer by the glass, with service of pre-packaged food for consumption 
on-site, and with live entertainment as a special use, and a special use approval under 
the amendment. 

• Recommended approval 7-0. 
 
Z-08-2017: 101 Tower Drive (Global Luxury Imports) 

• Sought a renewal of a temporary special use for an automobile sales business in a L-I 
Light Industrial District. The Plan Commission recommended a modification of 
conditions. 

• Recommended approval 7-0. 
 
Z-10-2017: 412 Rockwell Court (Spencer) 

• Sought a special use to permit outdoor, overnight parking of commercial vehicles on 
the property. The Plan Commission permitted 40 vehicles to be parked outdoors with 
the condition that the petitioner fence the parking lot. 

• Recommended approval 7-0  
 
Z-11-2017: 15W308 North Frontage Road (VIP Paws) 

• Sought a special use for a kennel in a B-2 Business District. The petitioner withdrew the 
request before a vote was taken. 

 
  



PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Ordinance Review 
February 19, 2018 
 
Z-12-2017: 280 Shore Drive (Windy City Curling) 

• Also sought a text amendment to amend an existing special use to Team and Club 
Recreational Facilities, occupying 5,000 square feet or more of floor area, located in a 
permanent building with no outdoor facilities, and not including any retail, health or 
fitness facilities, and a special use approval under the amendment to permit a curling 
facility in a G-I General Industrial District. 

• Recommended approval 5-0. 
 
Z-13-2017: 15W455 79th Street (St. Mark Christian Montessori Preschool) 

• Sought a special use to install a fence in a corner side yard in a residential district. 
• Recommended approval 5-0. 

 
Amendments 
 
Z-15-2016: Personal Wireless Service Facilities 

• Discussed amendments that would limit the location of small cell wireless antennas. 
• Recommended approval 6-0. 

 
Z-05-2017: Permeable Pavers and Rear Lot Coverage 

• Discussed amendments that would alter the permitted amount of rear lot coverage if 
permeable surfaces were used for accessory structures. Recommended no alterations to 
the Zoning Ordinance but sought to encourage use of permeable pavers in lieu of non-
permeable systems. 

• Recommended approval 6-0. 
 
Z-09-2017: Permitted and Special Uses in the B-1 District (Garber) 

• Petitioner sought to amend the B-1 District to include all special uses as permitted uses. 
• Recommended denial 7-0. 

 
S-03-2017: Non-Commercial Sign Regulation 

• Discussed amendments to the Sign Ordinance which would remove regulations based 
on the content of non-commercial, temporary signage. 

• Recommended approval 6-0. 
 
Z-14-2017: 11650 Bridewell Drive (McNaughton Development) 

• Discussed permitting a PUD for 44 single-family homes on 19.76 acres instead of 20 
acres. 

• Recommended approval 6-0. 
 
PC-08-2017: Short-Term Rentals in Residential Districts 

• Discussed potential amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to define short-term rentals. 
The Plan Commission felt that the Zoning Ordinance was appropriate as-is. 

 
  



PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Ordinance Review 
February 19, 2018 
 
Re-Zoning 
 
Z-02-2017: 15W069 and 15W081 91st Street (Pacocha) 

• A property owner sought to annex and re-zone the subject property to a compatible 
Zoning District, which was recommended to be the R-2B District. 

• Recommended approval 6-0.  
 
Z-15-2017: 15W110 83rd Street (Olguin) 

• Sought re-zoning of five lots from R-2 Residential to R-2B Residential. The Plan 
Commission recommended that the southern portion of the property be re-zoned as 
requested. 

• Recommended approval 5-0. 
 
Z-16-2017: 15W110 87th Street (Provencal) 

• Sought re-zoning of a 10-acre property from R-2A Residential to R-3 Residential. 
• Recommended denial 5-0. 

 
Signs 
 
S-01-2017: 16W115 83rd Street (RCM Data) 

• Sought conditional approval for a sign with more than three colors. 
• Recommended approval 6-0. 

 
S-02-2017: 7425 Wolf Road (Pleasantdale Park District) 

• Sought conditional approval for a sign in a residential district. 
• Recommended approval 7-0. 

 
S-04-2017: 705 Village Center Drive (Hampton Social) 

• Sought variations to permit two wall signs exceeding 100 square feet in total area. 
• Recommended approval 5-0. 

 
S-05-2017: 775 Village Center Drive (Kohler) 

• South a variation to permit a wall sign exceeding 50 square feet. 
• Recommended approval 6-0. 

 
S-08-2017: 7020 County Line Road (Busey Bank) 

• Sought a variation to permit the increase in the amount of signage to 418 square feet 
and permit a wall sign in addition to existing ground signs. 

• Recommended approval 5-0. 
 
S-09-2017: 880 Village Center Drive (Design Bar) 

• Sought a variation to permit storefront signs outside of the established sign zone and to 
use signs that are not individual letters attached directly to the building. 

• Recommended approval 4-0.  
 



PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Ordinance Review 
February 19, 2018 
 
S-10-2017: 16W361 South Frontage Road (Balsitis) 

• Sought a variation to permit a second ground sign on the property. 
• Recommended denial 5-0. 

 
Other Petitions 
 
Z-12-2016: 7600 County Line Road (Rehabilitation Institute of Chicago) 

• The proposed use for a medical clinic was subject to final review of stormwater plans 
and architectural materials and colors.  

• Recommended approval 4-0. 
 
PC-02-2017: 6200 County Line Road (Burr Ridge Club) 

• This consideration for a subdivision fence sought to replace an old, solid wood fence 
partially with another solid wood fence and partially with an open metal fence. 

• Recommended approval 7-0. 
 
PC-04-2017: 9900 S. Route 83 (DuPage County ZBA Hearing – Lorig) 

• The Plan Commission adopted a recommendation to the Village Board objecting to a 
conditional use for an asphalt plant.  

• Recommended approval 7-0. 
 
PC-08-2017: 6330 County Line Road (Gibbons) 

• Sought approval to construct a private sanitary system. 
• Recommended approval 5-0. 

 
Balac Preliminary Plat of Subdivision 

• Recommended approval 6-0. 
 
After review of all public hearing petitions for 2017, staff has identified four items for further 
consideration. First, Section IV.J.1.e of the Zoning Ordinance states that “all fences in 
residential districts shall be at least 50 percent [open] (paraphrased), while Section IV.J.1.d 
states that “solid…fences…are specifically prohibited.” Staff’s interpretation of these 
regulations is that there is a procedural conflict regarding solid fences. It is the opinion of the 
Village Attorney that variations may not be granted for prohibited items, while variations may 
be granted to permit fences that are less than 50 percent open, including potentially solid fences.   
 
Second, staff has also received requests by residents to amend the Zoning Ordinance to prohibit 
spike-top fences in the Village. There have been several incidents in the Village where large 
animals became impaled on such fences after they attempted to scale them. Staff recommends 
that further consideration be given to amending the Zoning Ordinance to clarify the regulations 
regarding closed fences and consider regulations regarding spike top-fences.   
 
Third, the Village currently lists “Sporting goods stores with less than 7,000 square feet of floor 
area” as a permitted use and “Sporting goods stores with more than 7,000 square feet of floor 
area” as a special use in the B-1 District, and “Sporting goods stores” as a special use in the B-
2 District. Staff suggests adding a special use in each of these Zoning Districts called “Gun sales 



PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Ordinance Review 
February 19, 2018 
 
and gun clubs.” This would allow for a narrower definition for primarily gun-oriented uses, and 
give the Village more authority on regulating such uses. Staff recommends that further 
consideration be given to amending the Zoning Ordinance to include “Gun sales and gun clubs” 
as a special use in Business Districts.  
 
Finally, Section IV.H.9.a of the Zoning Ordinance states that “the combined horizontal area of 
all accessory buildings, structures, and uses shall not exceed 30 percent of the area to the rear 
of the principal building.” This calculation is made by dividing the area of all accessory 
structures behind the rear wall of the building by the rear lot area. For interior lots, the rear yard 
is calculated from both interior property lines, whereas corner lots may only take advantage of 
the rear yard towards the corner side yard setback, thus limiting the potential size of their rear 
yard. Figure 1 demonstrates a comparison of permitted land-use between a corner lot and an 
interior lot. Many accessory structures that are permitted in the rear yard are not permitted in 
the corner side yard, such as an outdoor fireplace. Staff recommends that further consideration 
be given to amending the Zoning Ordinance to include the corner side yard area behind the rear 
wall of a home as permitted area for accessory structures on corner lots. 
 
 

Figure 1 – Example Context of an Interior and Corner Rear Yard 

 
 

Interior Rear Yard 

Corner Rear Yard 

Corner Side Yard 


	PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA February 19, 2018
	PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 5, 2018
	Z-03-2018: Outdoor, Overnight Commercial Vehicle Parking
	Exhibit A - Proposed Commercial Vehicle Parking Permit

	Board Report for February 19, 2018 Plan Commission Meeting
	Building Report - January 2018
	2018 Zoning Map
	PC-04-2018; 7656 Wolf Road; Request for Private Sanitary Sewer System
	Exhibit A - Report from Village Engineer
	Exhibit B - Petitioner's Materials

	S-02-2018: 7600 County Line Road (Shirley Ryan Ability Lab)
	Exhibit A - Proposed Sign Elevation
	Exhibit B - Petitioner's Materials

	PC-05-2018; Consideration of Amendments to the Sign Ordinance
	PC-06-2018; Annual Zoning Review



